
 
 

 

c/o Helms & Company, Inc.  One Pillsbury Street, Suite 200  Concord NH 03301  603-225-6633  www.nhvaccine.org 

 
AGENDA 

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 
June 5, 2020 

9:00-11:00am 
VIA WEBINAR 

 
Committee Members: David Sky, Chair, Susan Tenney, Vice Chair, Elizabeth Daly, Jason Margus  
 
Administrator Staff: Patrick Miller, Keith Nix, Erin Meagher 
 
9:00am 1. Call to Order 

9:00am-9:05am 2. Review and Accept September 16, 2019 Meeting Minutes – Vote 

9:05am-10:15am 3. Executive Director Report 

a) Unaudited Financials April 2020 YTD  

i. Assessments Update 

ii. Covered Lives 

iii. Interest Assessments 

iv. TRICARE Assessments 

b) Investments Update 

c) Impact of COVID-19 

10:15am-10:45am 4. Auditor Selection and FY2021 Administrative Budget 

a) Selection of Carew & Wells as Auditor for FY2020 – Vote  

b) FY2021 Administrative Budget Review and Discussion – Vote 

10:45am-11:00 5. Other Business 

10:00am 6. Call to Adjourn 

 



 
 
 

 

MINUTES 1 
Audit Committee Meeting 2 

September 16, 2019 3 
11:00 am to 12:30 pm 4 

Presiding Officer:  David Sky, Chair, Audit Committee 5 
 6 
A meeting of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the New Hampshire Vaccine Association (NHVA) was 7 
held in person at the offices of the NH Department of Insurance in Concord, NH with a quorum present. 8 
 9 
The meeting was called to order by Mr. Sky at 11:04 am. 10 
 11 
1. Welcome and Introductions 12 

 13 
Attendance – The following individuals attended the meeting, including by phone (P) as indicated: 14 

 15 
Committee Members: Other Attendees: 
David Sky, NHID, Chair Wendy Parker, HealthTrust, Board Member  
Susan Tenney, HPHC, Vice Chair Patrick Miller, Helms & Company 
Elizabeth Daly, NH DHHS Erin Meagher, Helms & Company 
Jason Margus, Anthem Keith Nix, Helms & Company 
 John Hastings, Helms & Company 
 Arlene Folsom, Bank of New Hampshire 
 Dona Murray, Bank of New Hampshire 
Members of the Public  
Briana Berrigan, Deerfield (P) Rachel Martin, Weare 
Andrea Boland, Tamworth Ms. McCartney, Concord (P) 
Lisa Capellan, Bedford (P) Sue Misiaszek, Londonderry 
Laura Condon, Bedford Jennifer Madone, Manchester (P) 
Ruth Hadley, Newmarket Nicole Nordlund, Mason 
Elizabeth Kinney, Portsmouth Karen Reddick, Antrim (P) 
Jessica Kliskey, Stratham (P) Robert Reddick, Antrim (P) 
Kathleen LaBonte, Henniker (P) Claudia Sinclair, Nashua (P) 
Diane Lambert (P) Tatiana Smith, Londonderry 
Sizaida Maldonado, Rochester Ms. Tangway (P) 
Other members of the public joined in person and on the phone but failed to sign in or identify 
themselves on the phone. Every attempt has been made to accurately capture names and towns of 
those attending from the public. 
  

Ms. Condon announced she was videotaping the meeting and Mr. Miller announced he was recording the audio of 16 
the meeting. 17 
 18 
Mr. Sky announced the group will proceed to item #3 since not all Committee members had yet arrived to create a 19 
quorum.   20 
 21 
3. Investment Policy Recommendations, Dona Murray and Arlene Folsom, Bank of New Hampshire 22 
 23 
Mr. Miller reminded the group that Bank of New Hampshire (BONH) had met with the Audit Committee in August 24 
and had been asked to review NHVA’s current Investment Policy. BONH had helped update the policy in 2016 prior 25 

Packet Page Number 2



 
 
 

 

to Helms becoming the Administrator. In light of the quarterly cash collected from assessments and the reserve 26 
funds NHVA would like to invest, BONH was asked to assist in revising the policy for both longer term growth and 27 
more prudent use of cash. Mr. Miller introduced Arlene Folsom and Dona Murray from BONH. 28 
 29 
Ms. Folsom thanked the Board for their time and stated that BONH would like to move forward with several 30 
investment strategies within the revised Investment Policy Statement. Ms. Murray directed the Committee to page 31 
eight of the meeting packet and walked through the presentation. The first part of the Investment Policy Statement 32 
revisions outlined a summary of BONH’s qualifications, expertise, and their strategy and approach to investing for 33 
non-profits. Ms. Murray briefly discussed several types of NHVA investment purposes such as the short-term 34 
investment of assessment funds collected throughout the year that are needed for the annual transfer to State of 35 
New Hampshire. Long-term investments would include the funding of the proposed $5M reserve fund. Ms. Murray 36 
discussed the proposed investment objectives, principles, and guidelines to be considered as changes to the existing 37 
policy. 38 
 39 
During the discussion several edits to the draft Investment Policy Statement were suggested: 40 

 Section III. Part A should be renamed from Receipts from Payer Assessment to Short-Term Investments.   41 
 Add an additional bullet should be added under Eligible Investments with Maximums to include Certificate 42 

of Deposits as an investment option. 43 
 Add timeframes for the Board of Directors to identify the funds that should be considered for short-term 44 

investment with the balance of funds falling into long-term investments. The group discussed adding this 45 
to the September Board meeting each year when the upcoming calendar year assessment rate is set. 46 

 Add an additional bullet to list ICS Promontory accounts which are currently being utilized and would 47 
continue under the short-term investments. 48 

 Clarify the investment limitations for BBB-rated investments so that no more than 30% of investments shall 49 
have lower than a AAA- rating. 50 

 Revise the maturity ranges from 10 years to five years and laddered securities from six to three years. 51 
 Consider adding in a new option that BONH is investigating which is a product that is a mutual fund but 52 

acts like a bond. 53 
 Clarify that the Board has the authority to make investment decisions. The Audit Committee will review 54 

and investigate any proposal then provide an opinion to assist the full Board for any required vote.   55 
 Designate the Audit Committee to receive quarterly performance reports for all investments. 56 
 Change the word “consultant” to Executive Director on page 21 of presentation under Section IV. 57 

 58 
Ms. Murray reiterated that the goal for all short-term investments is to have no potential loss of principal. Discussion 59 
ensued regarding how to ladder the maturity dates for the long-term investment monies. It was discussed that there 60 
was the potential to have several different investments with alternating maturity dates.   61 
 62 
Mr. Sky thanked Ms. Murray for the thoughtful revisions to the Investment Policy Statement. Ms. Murray will make 63 
the agreed upon changes and will provide a revised copy to Mr. Miller for the Board meeting scheduled for next 64 
week, September 25, 2019.  65 
 66 
2. Review and Accept August 6, 2019 Audit Committee Minutes 67 
 68 
VOTE RECORDED: On a motion by Ms. Tenney, seconded by Mr. Margus, it was unanimously  69 

VOTED: To accept the August 6, 2019 Audit Committee minutes as presented.  70 
 71 
 72 
 73 
 74 
 75 

Packet Page Number 3



 
 
 

 

4. Administrator Updates 76 
 77 
Mr. Miller directed the group to page 27 of the meeting packet related to the assessment rate model. Updates have 78 
been made since the August 2019 Audit Committee meeting. Mr. Miller stated that the primary goal of presenting 79 
the multi-year model is to keep the assessment rate as level as possible.   80 
 81 
Mr. Miller reported that the decline in covered child lives continues with a decline of 1.6% from quarter two in 82 
CY2014 through quarter one of CY2019. The rolling percentage in the same time period declined 0.1%.   83 
 84 
The State Vaccine Expenditure, Stability in Payer Proportion, and Investment Interest Income charts were briefly 85 
reviewed.   86 
 87 
Mr. Miller reviewed the CY2020 Core Rate Assumptions as changes have been made since the Audit Committee met 88 
in August. Mr. Miller reported that he spoke with NHVA’s TRICARE contact and was told the cap rate going forward 89 
will likely remain at or above the current level of $12.47 for FFY2020. TRICARE will notify us of a rate change by the 90 
end of September.  91 
 92 
Ms. Daly confirmed that as of few weeks ago, the CDC credit for October 1, 2019 was approximately $1.8M. The 93 
current assessment model uses a conservative figure of $1.9M given prior year averages of $3.5M. The actual 94 
number will not be known until October 1, 2019, the start of the Federal fiscal year.   95 
 96 
At the conclusion of reviewing the Model Assumptions, Mr. Sky asked if any of the Audit Committee members had 97 
any questions related to the assumptions prior to reviewing the model and rate setting process. There were no 98 
questions or comments, and Mr. Miller referred the Committee to page 40 of the packet.   99 
 100 
Referencing the Cash Flow / Reconciliation / Rates chart, Mr. Miller explained that the first section under header of 101 
New Model reflects actual numbers for CY2019 and CY2020 with projections for future years to the right. He 102 
reviewed the annual adjustment factors. There was limited discussion regarding these adjustments.  103 
 104 
Mr. Miller referenced the assessment rate line which showed the current calendar year rate of $6.47, compared to 105 
the prior year’s rate of $6.70, and the proposed rate for CY2020 as $6.80.  Based on current, conservative projections, 106 
CY2021 is forecasted to be at $6.95 and CY2022 at $7.00, subject to change. The rate setting process was focused 107 
on stabilizing the rate and maintaining the proposed $5M reserve through the next four years 108 
 109 
Mr. Sky asked for clarification as to why 59.7% was used as the percentage paid by insurers within the model for the 110 
outer years versus the 64.0% projected for 2019/2020. Mr. Miller explained the 64.0% is the projected calculation 111 
from the State worksheets. Historically, the projections provide by the State have been high and the Administrator 112 
chose to use 59.7% based upon the 13-year historical trend. Ms. Daly further explained the 64.0% is because the 113 
estimate of how much federal money the State is going to receive is a million less than what was received last year, 114 
which artificially inflates the percentage for insurers.  115 
 116 
Mr. Hastings referred to the green cells on the chart explaining they represent the projected gross vaccine costs 117 
after deducting VFC and NH credits. Ms. Daly asked about the $3.7M number as it does not reflect the numbers 118 
provided in her workbook. Mr. Hastings explained in the State’s schedule there was $6.7M carried forward and we 119 
deducted from that approximately $2.9M, which is the increase that the State is projecting for this year’s total cost 120 
compared to last year. In order to achieve a zero balance forward for next year, NHVA needs to pay DHHS an 121 
additional $2.9M to pick up the cost that is being incurred for this year. After discussion, it was decided to add a 122 
note to the assessment projection Table C to reference the worksheet provided by the State for additional details as 123 
to how the number was calculated. The State’s workbook will also be expanded to provide more detail to the 124 
calculations.   125 

Packet Page Number 4



 
 
 

 

 126 
With the additional information that Mr. Hastings and Mr. Miller agreed to add to the worksheets, all agreed to 127 
accept the assessment process and proposed assessment rate. Mr. Miller reminded that the model is designed to 128 
help the Board have some insight into a multi-year projection of assessment rates and cash.   129 
 130 
Mr. Sky asked the payer representatives on the Committee to share their thoughts on the process and model and 131 
asked if there were any questions. Both Mr. Margus and Ms. Tenney stated that they were comfortable with the 132 
process and the recommended rate for CY2020. Ms. Tenney asked about using the 64% payer proportion versus the 133 
trend rate of 59.7%.  Mr. Hastings explained using the lower percentage rate was a more conservative approach with 134 
the desire to not over-collect from payers. 135 
 136 
VOTE RECORDED: On a motion by Ms. Tenney, seconded by Mr. Margus, it was unanimously  137 

VOTED: To recommend to the Board of Directors at the Board meeting scheduled for 138 
September 25, 2019 to accept the CY2020 recommended assessment rate of 139 
$6.80. 140 

 141 
Mr. Miller reminded the group that the rest of the workbook files received from the State is also included in the 142 
packet. 143 
 144 
5. New Business / Public Comment 145 
 146 
Mr. Sky asked if there was any new business to discuss. There being none, Mr. Sky opened the meeting for public 147 
comment and asked that comments be directed to business related to the Audit Committee. He asked those in the 148 
room to comment first and then the people on the phone would have a chance. 149 
 150 

 Ms. Laura Condon addressed the group and thanked the Committee for accommodating the public 151 
attendance and the public's concern about vaccine safety. She asked the members of the public on the 152 
phone to please assist Helms & Company by identifying who they are and their town and send an email to 153 
Helms for documenting participation in the meeting.   154 
 155 
With regard to the proposal from DHHS for administrative funding, Ms. Condon reminded the group that 156 
they received legal opinion from NHVA counsel that the funds from NHVA were not appropriate to be paid 157 
to DHHS for these services. Ms. Condon was pleased to see the Board is still relying on that opinion.   158 
 159 
Finally, Ms. Condon requested the meeting packet be available on-line for members of the public. Mr. Miller 160 
replied that the meeting packet had been posted as of 9:00 am this morning. Ms. Condon expressed 161 
appreciation for allowing members of the public to comment.  162 
 163 

 Ms. Ruth Hadley thanked the Committee for allowing public comment and thanked Ms. Condon for helping 164 
the public better understand what the NHVA is all about. 165 
 166 

 Ms. Sue Misiaszek stated that while NHVA is primarily focused on business transactions, from a personal 167 
standpoint it is about children and about safety concerns. She thanked the Committee. 168 
 169 

 Ms. Andrea Boland addressed the group stating she was pleased to attend. Ms. Boland attended to gain 170 
knowledge and to help educate people.  Ms. Boland expressed concern about what's happening in our 171 
society, considering some of the laws that have recently been passed in New York and California in regard 172 
to vaccinations. She believes some vaccines have injured children and adults.  173 
 174 

Packet Page Number 5



 
 
 

 

Mr. Sky thanked the members of the public in the room that had spoken and reminded members of the public that 175 
they are welcome to comment, but to please keep the focus on items related to the Audit Committee.   176 
 177 

 Mr. Robert Reddick stated he wanted to express his appreciation for allowing participation by phone. He 178 
stated that as concerned citizens and parents, he found this very helpful and appreciated the Committee’s 179 
time.  180 

 181 
6. Adjournment 182 
 183 
VOTE RECORDED: On a motion by Ms. Tenney, seconded by Ms. Daly, it was unanimously  184 

VOTED: To adjourn the Audit Committee meeting at 12:22 pm 185 
 186 
 187 
 188 
Respectfully submitted by  189 
Patrick Miller, Helms & Company, Inc. 190 
September 21, 2019 191 
 192 
 193 

# # # 194 

Packet Page Number 6



Cash Basis   NHVA
Statement of Cash Flow

YTD FY2020
 Month Ended 
April 30, 2020

FY20 - Q1  
Actual

FY20 - Q2  
Actual

FY20 - Q3  
Actual

FY20 - Q4 
Actual

FY 2020               
YTD Actual

FY 2020                
YTD Budget

Difference              
YTD                 

Act to Bud
04/30/20 04/30/20 04/30/20 04/30/20

Receipts (Source)
Assessment Collections 3,217,932      3,206,571      3,198,289      329,181           9,951,973      10,839,113    (887,140)        
TRICARE Settlement 81,882           103,800         106,829         -                    292,511         -                  292,511         

* Accounts Receivable -                  -                  -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  
Interest Income - Investments 70,547           87,389           74,133           22,319             254,387         185,040         69,347           
Interest Income - Assessments -                  49                   128                 -                    177                 -                  177                 
Dividend Income 1,457              1,186              999                 1,371               5,012              4,100              912                 

** Investment - Short term and CDs (1,457)            (1,186)            (6,999,633)     (17,421)            (7,019,697)     -                  (7,019,697)     
3,370,361      3,397,809      (3,619,255)     335,450           3,484,364      11,028,254    (7,543,889)     

Disbursements (Use)
Expenses 40,212           29,171           27,763           9,805               106,950         120,800         (13,850)          

* Prepaids & Payables Change (559)                (439)                2,634              (280)                 1,356              -                  1,356              
Vaccine Expenses -                  -                  -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  

39,653           28,732           30,397           9,525               108,307         120,800         (12,493)          

Increase (Decrease) 3,330,707      3,369,076      (3,649,651)     325,925           3,376,058      10,907,454    (7,531,396)     

Cash Balance - Beginning 12,220,200    15,550,907    18,919,984    15,270,332      12,220,200    12,220,200    -                  
Cash Balance - Ending 15,550,907    18,919,984    15,270,332    15,596,258      15,596,258    23,127,654    (7,531,396)     

Notes:
*   Changes in Balance Sheet accounts are denoted as () = Increases and positive = decrease
** The negative number represents amounts re-invested within the Short Term Investments and funds from ICS account

5/20/2020 Packet Page Number 7



Cash Basis  NHVA

Statement of Financial Position
 YTD FY2020 

Month Ended April 30, 2020

Jun 30, 19 Sep 30, 19 Dec 31, 19 Mar 31, 20 Apr 30, 20

ASSETS FYE 19 FY20 - Q1 FY20 - Q2 FY20 - Q3 FY20 - Q4

Current Assets Audited Interim Interim Interim Interim - Mnth
Checking/Savings

Bank of NH #851031104 49,994$                 49,919$            49,749$            50,000$                 49,660$                
Bank of NH - ICS 12,170,206$         15,500,988$    18,870,234$    15,220,332$         15,546,598$        

Total Checking/Savings 12,220,200$         15,550,907$    18,919,984$    15,270,332$         15,596,258$        
Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable (A/R) -$                        -$                   -$                   -$                       -$                      
Allowance for Account Receivable -$                        -$                   -$                   -$                       -$                      

Total Accounts Receivable -$                        -$                   -$                   -$                       -$                      
Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expenses 1,164$                    665$                  166$                  2,800$                   2,520$                  
Short Term Investments 261,566$               263,023$          264,209$          7,266,559$           7,281,263$          
Unrecognized Gain or Loss - ST -$                        -$                   -$                   (2,717)$                  -$                      

Total Other Current Assets 262,730$               263,688$          264,375$          7,266,641$           7,283,783$          
Total Current Assets 12,482,930$         15,814,595$    19,184,359$    22,536,974$         22,880,040$        

TOTAL ASSETS 12,482,930$         15,814,595$    19,184,359$    22,536,974$         22,880,040$       
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
* Accounts Payable -$                        60$                    -$                   -$                       -$                      

Other Current Liabilities
Liquidity Reserve 250,000$               250,000$          250,000$          250,000$              250,000$             

Total Current Liabilities 250,000$               250,060$          250,000$          250,000$              250,000$             
Total Liabilities 250,000$               250,060$          250,000$          250,000$              250,000$             
Equity

Retained Earnings 1,856,672$            10,386,901$    10,386,901$    10,386,901$         10,386,901$        
Fund Balance to be Distributed 1,846,029$            1,846,029$       1,846,029$       1,846,029$           1,846,029$          
Net Income 8,530,229$            3,331,605$       6,701,429$       10,054,044$         10,397,111$        

Total Equity 12,232,930$         15,564,535$    18,934,359$    22,286,974$         22,630,040$        
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 12,482,930$         15,814,595$    19,184,359$    22,536,974$         22,880,040$       

Notes: * AP State of New Hampshire Payable (June 30, 2020) 11,751,393$       

5/20/2020  Page 2 of 3Packet Page Number 8



          
           Cash Basis

 NHVA

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
YTD FY2020

Month Ended April 30, 2020

FY20 - Q1  
Actual

FY20 - Q2   
Actual

FY20 - Q3   
Actual

FY20 - Q4   
Actual

FY 2020               
YTD Actual

FY 2020                
YTD Budget

Difference              
YTD Act to Bud

FY 2020               
Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense 04/30/20 04/30/20 04/30/20 04/30/20
Income

Assessment Income 3,217,932$        3,206,571$       3,198,289$      329,181$          9,951,973$             10,839,113$         (887,140)$              13,104,274$              
TRICARE Settlement 81,882$              103,800$          106,829$          -$                   292,511$                 -$                       292,511$               -$                             
Interest Income - Assessments -$                    49$                    128$                  -$                   177$                         -$                       177$                       -$                             
Interest Income - Investments 70,547$              87,389$            74,133$            10,253$            242,321$                 185,040$              57,281$                  248,189$                    
Dividend Income 1,457$                1,186$               999$                  1,371$              5,012$                     4,100$                   912$                       4,920$                         
Unrecognized Gain or Loss -$                    -$                   -$                   12,066$            12,066$                   -$                       12,066$                  -$                             

Total Income 3,371,817$        3,398,995$       3,380,378$      352,871$          10,504,061$           11,028,254$         (524,193)$              13,357,383$              

Expenses
Bank Service Charges 746$                   485$                  492$                  -$                   1,723$                     3,600$                   (1,877)$                   4,320$                         
Vaccine - Annual State Payment -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                         -$                       -$                        -$                             
Management Fees 25,000$              25,000$            25,142$            8,333$              83,475$                   83,333$                 142$                       100,000$                    
Professional Fees - Legal 4,995$                2,423$               1,403$              315$                  9,136$                     20,833$                 (11,698)$                25,000$                      
Professional Fees - Audit 8,500$                -$                   -$                   -$                   8,500$                     8,500$                   -$                        8,500$                         
Insurance 499$                   499$                  726$                  * 280$                  2,004$                     2,000$                   4$                            2,000$                         
Postage & Printing (Office) 322$                   278$                  -$                   851$                  1,451$                     400$                      1,051$                    480$                            
Website & SubContractors 75$                      486$                  -$                   25$                    586$                         1,525$                   (939)$                      1,725$                         
Board Meetings Expense -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                         533$                      (533)$                      600$                            
Dues & Subscriptions -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                         -$                       -$                        -$                             
TRICARE - Washington -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                         -$                       -$                        -$                             
Public Information -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                         -$                       -$                        -$                             
Advertising -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                         -$                       -$                        -$                             
Licenses and Fees 75$                      -$                   -$                   -$                   75$                           75$                         -$                        75$                              

Total Expenses 40,212$              29,171$            27,763$            9,805$              106,950$                 120,800$              (13,850)$                142,700$                    
Net Ordinary Income 3,331,605$        3,369,824$       3,352,615$      343,066$          10,397,111$           10,907,454$         (510,343)$              13,214,683$              
Net Income 3,331,605$        3,369,824$      3,352,615$      343,066$          10,397,111$           10,907,454$         (510,343)$              13,214,683$              

* The Prepaid Expenses represent an increase over budget in the D&O Insurance renewal due to NHVA having greater assets 
under management than the prior year. Renewal increased from $1,995 to $3,360.

Collection Data:
Quarter being collected SFY20 - Q1 SFY20 - Q2 SFY20 - Q3 SFY20 - Q4
Payment Due Date 08/15/19 11/15/19 02/15/20 05/15/20
Projected Average Monthly Lives 166,556              166,556            166,556            166,556            
Actual Average Monthly Lives 165,787              165,202            164,775            165,295            

Avg Lives Variance   +(-) (769)                    (1,354)                (1,781)               (1,261)               
Approved Assessment Rate 6.47$                  6.47$                 6.47$                 6.80$                 
Actual Average Monthly Lives - TRICARE 4,549 4,626 4,761 4,791
Additional Assessment Rate - TRICARE 6.00$                  6.70$                 6.70$                 6.70$                 

5/20/2020  Page 3 of 3Packet Page Number 9



COVID-19 Assessed Lives 
Impact Discussion

NHVA Audit Committee Meeting
June 5, 2020

Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine Association 1Packet Page Number 10



Contents
1. Background
2. Historical Trends
3. Model
4. Discussion

2Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Packet Page Number 11



1. Background

3Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Packet Page Number 12



Background
• There is concern that rising unemployment rates due to 

COVID-19 job losses will lead to a lower commercially-
insured population which in turn will lower the assessment 
amounts collected beginning in Q2 CY2020

• Governor Sununu issued his first Executive Order re: COVID-19 on 
March 13, 2020

• Unemployment rates rose from 2.5% to 16.3% between February 
and April 2020

• Governor Sununu projected a budget shortfall of $500-700M in 
current biennium; State revenues dropped XX% in April 2020

• Q1 CY2020 assessment receipts do not appear to have been 
impacted by rising unemployment

• NHVA had previously set aside funds for contingencies should 
they be needed

• This presentation reviews a model to examine commercially-
insured job loss impact to NHVA assessment revenues; it is 
expected to drive a discussion regarding the financial needs 
of the organization

4Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Packet Page Number 13



NH Unemployment Rate April 2000 to 
April 2020 “New Hampshire’s 

preliminary seasonally 
adjusted unemployment 
rate for April 2020 was 
16.3 percent, reflecting 
the impact on 
unemployment due to 
the coronavirus (COVID-
19) pandemic and efforts 
to contain it. This is the 
highest unemployment 
rate in the history of the 
series (seasonally 
adjusted data are 
available back to 1976). 
This was an increase of 
13.9 percentage points 
from the March rate, 
which decreased to 2.4 
percent after revision. 
The April 2019 seasonally 
adjusted rate was 2.5 
percent.”
Source: NH Public Radio website 
using data from NH Employment 
Security Bureau of Labor Statistics

5Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

ADDED: Reached 18.5% on May 29

Packet Page Number 14



Some Good News From Department of 
Employment Security

6Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

New claims for unemployment dropped for the seventh consecutive week during the 
week ending May 23th. For the week, 6,973 individuals filed claims for 
unemployment insurance with the State of New Hampshire’s Department of 
Employment Security, down 21 percent from a revised 8,794 during the week ending 
May 16th, 2020. Nationally, the number of initial claims was down 12 percent 
compared to the week ending May 16th. 

Note: It is unclear how 
many lost insurance 
coverage.

Source: 
https://www.nhes.nh.gov/documents/
new-claims-release-052820.pdf

Packet Page Number 15

https://www.nhes.nh.gov/documents/new-claims-release-052820.pdf


Low Unemployment Medium Unemployment High Unemployment

Medicaid Employer Mktplc & 
Uninsrd

Medicaid Employer Mktplc & 
Uninsrd

Medicaid Employer Mktplc & 
Uninsrd

43K -54K 11K 73K -108K 35K 105K -163K 58K

Multiple Predictions of Commercial Losses

7Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

State Total Uninsured 
Due to ESI Loss Medicaid Eligible Coverage Gap Tax Credit Eligible

Ineligible for 
Financial 

Assistance due to 
Income, ESI Offer, 

or Citizenship

New Hampshire 144,000 109,000 – 27,000 8,000

Source: Kaiser Family Foundation: May 13, 2020; https://www.kff.org/coronavirus-covid-19/issue-brief/eligibility-for-aca-
health-coverage-following-job-loss/

Source: HMA: April 3, 2020; https://www.healthmanagement.com/wp-content/uploads/HMA-Estimates-of-COVID-Impact-
on-Coverage-public-version-for-April-3-830-CT.pdf

“Unprecedented levels of unemployment will cause tens of millions of people to lose job-based coverage, 
and millions to become uninsured, further reducing utilization. During subsequent waves of COVID-19, it is 
virtually certain that non-COVID related health care utilization will decrease as well.”

Source: “How COVID-19 Will Likely Affect Spending, And Why Many Other Analyses May Be Wrong, " Health Affairs 
Blog, May 19, 2020.DOI: 10.1377/hblog20200518.567886

Packet Page Number 16

https://www.kff.org/coronavirus-covid-19/issue-brief/eligibility-for-aca-health-coverage-following-job-loss/
https://www.healthmanagement.com/wp-content/uploads/HMA-Estimates-of-COVID-Impact-on-Coverage-public-version-for-April-3-830-CT.pdf


NH Medicaid Enrollment Changes

8Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Source: NH DHHS – Data Analytics – 5/4/2020

Note: May 31, 2020 
figures not released at 
time of presentation 
construction.

Packet Page Number 17



NH Childhood Immunization Program 
Actions and Insights
• Working with healthcare practices since the beginning of the pandemic

• CDC and AAP support
• Maintenance strategies for practices have been implemented
• Not relaxing school and childhood vaccination requirements
• Mitigating risks of an outbreak by keeping vaccination rates high (e.g., measles)

• Vaccine orders
• March and April decrease in order quantity
• May order quantities have swung back upward; restocking occurring
• July-Aug-Sept typically high order months given back to school

• Annual fund split assessments done annual when provider re-certifies 
• Based on a calendar year timeline; done by March; will not account for COVID-19 until next year

• Vaccination volumes
• Family practice / pediatric practices strategy re: well-child visits and back to school
• Volume should go up in the coming quarters as practices re-open
• Unemployment could impact split
• Believed that many furloughed employees kept their insurance

• Resurgence of COVID-19
• Per CDC, seasonality is likely/possible
• CDC will likely encourage increased influenza vaccination

• COVID-19 vaccine
• No formal discussion yet regarding reimbursement when available

9Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Packet Page Number 18



2. Historical Trends

10Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Packet Page Number 19



Increasing State Vaccine Expenditures and 
Stability in Payer Proportion

Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine Association 11
Source: NH DHHS spreadsheet, 08-01-2019; NHVA Historical Data

Note: From September 
2019 Board meeting.

Packet Page Number 20



Shrinking Assessed Lives and Variability in 
Assessed Rate

Source: NHVA KidsVax® reconciliation spreadsheet, 09-06-2018; NHVA Data August 2019
Note: Total Assessed Lives reflects CY2019 Tufts recovery activity and EBPA refund activity

Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine Association 12

Note: From September 
2019 Board meeting.

Packet Page Number 21



Trends Pre-COVID-19

13Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Note: This differs from 
prior page due to time 
scale.

Packet Page Number 22



3. Model

14Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Packet Page Number 23



Model Assumptions
• Covered lives drop from most recent quarter in the next 

two quarters and then begin to pick up again*
• FY2021 Q1 - 8% decrease in lives from FY2020 Q4
• FY2021 Q2 - 12% decrease in lives from FY2020 Q4
• FY2021 Q3 - 10% decrease in lives from FY2020 Q4
• FY2021 Q4 - 9% decrease in lives from FY2020 Q4

• DHHS expenditures likely to continue at historic rates
• Non-TRICARE and TRICARE lives are combined; 

percentage overall is small
• Does not incorporate investment income nor 

administrative expenses
• Does not make any assumptions re: passage of HB 1655

15Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Note: The numbers in 
orange can be adjusted 
to be reflected on next 
slide.

* Based upon child life subset of the 541,200 commercially-enrolled lives in NH in 2018 & 
the average of the HMA low and mid unemployment scenarios

Packet Page Number 24



Model: Pre- and Post-COVID-19 Expectations

16Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Note: Projections for 
next four quarters 
compared with “business 
as usual”.

Packet Page Number 25



4. Discussion & Next Steps

17Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Packet Page Number 26



Discussion Questions & Next Steps
Discussion Questions
• Does the model and its 

assumptions make sense?
• Are there ways to better consider 

both covered lives and 
immunization rates?

• What additional information do 
we need/could we add?

• How can we work with DHHS and 
NHID to track immunization 
trends and commercial carrier 
coverage changes in the coming 
months?

• What would you like shared with 
the Board at the June meeting?

Next Steps
• Prepare for the upcoming 

assessment development work
• Update Medicaid enrollment 

figures
• Update DHHS utilization and 

ordering information
• Track commercial carrier 

coverage changes with NHID 
information

• Monitor Q1 FY2021 NHVA 
assessments (due August 15, 
2020)

• Include this discussion in the 
June board meeting agenda

18Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Packet Page Number 27



Reference Materials

19Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Packet Page Number 28



Cash Flow / 
Reconciliation / Rates

20Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Description

SFY 2021 SFY 2022 SFY 2023 SFY 2024

4 Prior Year ACTUAL Avg Total Expenditure + Increase from Act SFY 18 1.74% 26,837,646$   2.1% 28,844,638$   2.1% 27,951,401$           28,525,494$       29,111,377$    29,709,294$  
        Provision for Vaccine Utilization Increase + Vaccine Cost Increase Actual SFY19 DHHS Trend Proj
        Subtotal
        Less:  Estimated VFC and Estimated NH General Fund

4 Prior Year ACTUAL Average % Paid by Insurers 57.72% 64.04% 59.70% 59.70% 59.70% 59.70% 59.70%
Actual SFY19 DHHS Trend Proj

Amount NHVA to pay DHHS (projected) Before Offsetting DHHS Surplus 15,490,000$   18,470,000$   16,690,000$           17,030,000$       17,380,000$    17,740,000$  

Normalized Administrative Expenses 144,727$        0.00% 142,700$        3.00% 142,700$                 146,981$            151,390$         155,932$       
    Provision for One-Time Expenditures 174,359$        -$                 -$                         -$                    -$                 -$                
         Admin % of Total Vaccine Costs 1.19% 0.49% 0.51% 0.52% 0.52% 0.52%

Total Assessment to be Raised - Before "Cushion" 15,809,086$   18,612,700$   16,832,700$           17,176,981$       17,531,390$    17,895,932$  

Apply Cushion ("Reserve") 10% per RSA 126-Q:4 II.(c) 10.00% 1,580,909$     10.00% 1,861,270$     10.00% 1,683,270$             1,717,698$         1,753,139$      1,789,593$    
     Actual Cushion ("reserve")
Investment Earnings (351,842)$       (267,751)$       (191,271)$               (173,358)$           (169,587)$        (161,595)$      

Grand Total Assessment to be Raised - Before DHHS Offset 17,038,153$   20,206,219$   18,324,699$           18,721,322$       19,114,942$    19,523,930$  

Final Assessment to be Raised
    Less:  Q1 Assessments Collected in May (3,235,518)$    (3,397,741)$    (3,469,835)$            (3,491,923)$        (3,489,051)$    (3,685,392)$   

Estimated Assessable Lives -1.30% 166,693           -0.10% 166,556           0.1% 166,693                   166,830              166,967           167,105         

     Rate Based on Proposed Cash Flow Outcomes
                            Q1 - Q3 10.30$             6.70$               6.47$                       6.80$                  6.95$               7.00$              
                            Q4 Collected in May following at new rate 6.70$               6.47$               6.80$                       6.95$                  7.00$               7.00$              
Projected Year End Cash Balance Actual 6/30/19 Projected 6/30/20 Projected 6/30/21 Projected 6/30/22 Projected 6/30/23 Projected 6/30/24
     Beginning Balance As of 6/30/2018 3,697,484$     12,220,200$   14,017,882$           11,426,194$       10,888,798$    10,066,617$  
     Projected Cash Received from Assessments - FY basis 17,796,406$   13,428,274$   13,928,941$           14,225,427$       14,288,821$    14,190,550$  
     Projected Interest Received 351,842$        267,751$        191,271$                 173,358$            169,587$         161,595$       
          Total Receipts 18,148,248$   13,696,025$   14,120,212$           14,398,785$       14,458,409$    14,352,146$  

     Projected Gross Vaccine Costs after deducting VFC and NH credits Actual=Green 19,149,829$   15,491,964$   Projected=Pink 18,470,000$           16,690,000$       17,030,000$    17,380,000$  
     Less:  Carryforward DHHS unspent funds (9,915,173)$    (3,740,571)$    (1,900,000)$            (1,900,000)$        (1,900,000)$    (1,900,000)$   
     Net cash payments due DHHS 9,234,656$     11,751,393$   16,570,000$           14,790,000$       15,130,000$    15,480,000$  
     Cash Paid for Administrative Expenses 390,876$        146,950$        141,900$                 146,181$            150,590$         155,132$       
           Total Disbursements 9,625,532$     11,898,343$   16,711,900$           14,936,181$       15,280,590$    15,635,132$  
     Projected Ending Balance Actual 6/30/19 12,220,200$   14,017,882$   11,426,194$           10,888,798$       10,066,617$    8,783,630$    

Actual 6/30/19 Projected 6/30/20 Projected 6/30/21 Projected 6/30/22 Projected 6/30/23 Projected 6/30/24
Projected Q1 Assessments collected in May 3,315,354$    3,235,518$     3,397,741$     3,469,835$             3,491,923$         3,489,051$      3,685,392$    
Projected Year end Cash Reserve - Target $5.0M 382,130$       8,984,682$     10,620,141$   7,956,360$             7,396,875$         6,577,565$      5,098,238$    
Total Cash on Hand 6/30 each year 3,697,484$    12,220,200$   14,017,882$   11,426,194$           10,888,798$       10,066,617$    8,783,630$    

Proj Year Beg =>

Proj Year Ending =>

FUTURE YEARS
CY19 Annual 
Adjustment 

Factors

Annual 
Adjustment 

Factors

Projected  Assessment Rate - 4 yearsSFY19   for 
CY19     Rate

NEW MODEL
CY20 Annual 
Adjustment 

Factors

Draft SFY20   
for CY20     

Rate

NEW MODEL

 See Tab D 
Edits=> 

Packet Page Number 29



21Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Updated as of 05-20-2020
Items in black are finalized. Items in red are projected.

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
Assessment Set CY 2016.  

$9.95
DHHS payment 

$19,653,132 due 6/30/17
CDC Replacement Credit 

$4,377,668
SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16

Assessment Set CY 2017.  
$10.30 

Assessment Collected 
$0.14

CY 2016 Assessment 
Collected $9.95

CY 2016 Assessment 
Collected $9.95

CY 17 DHHS payment 
$18,819,145 due 6/30/18

CDC Replacement Credit 
$3,564,068

CY 2016 Assessment 
Collected $9.95

SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17

Assessment Set CY 2018.  
$6.70

CY 2016 Assessment 
Collected $9.95

CY 2017 Assessment 
Collected $10.30

CY 2016 Assessment 
Paid to DHHS 

$19,653,132 6/30/17

CY 2017 Assessment 
Collected $10.30

CY2018 DHHS payment 
$9,234,656  due  6/30/19

CDC Replacement Credit 
$4,282,619

CY 2017 Assessment 
Collected $10.30

SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17 DHHS Reports 
Balance Forward 

$9,915,173

SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18

Assessment Set CY 2019 
$6.47

CY 2017 Assessment 
Collected $10.30

CY2018 Assessment 
Collected $6.70

CY 2017 Assessment 
Paid to DHHS 

$18,819,145 6/30/18

CY2018 Assessment 
Collected $6.70

CY 2019 DHHS expected 
payment  due 6/30/20 

$11,751,393

CDC Replacement Credit 
$1,856,544

CY2018 Assessment 
Collected $6.70

SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18 DHHS Reports 
Balance Forward 

$12,979,343

SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 19

Assessment Set CY 2020 
$6.80

CY2018 Assessment 
Collected $6.70

CY 2019 Assessment 
Collected  $6.47

CY 2018 Assessment 
Paid to DHHS $9,234,656 

6/30/19

CY 2019 Assessment 
Collected  $6.47

CY 2019 DHHS expects 
$16,570,000 due 6/30/21

CDC Replacement Credit 
$2,804,834 10/01/19

CY 2019 Assessment 
Collected  $6.47

SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 19SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 2019 DHHS Reports 
Balance Forward 

$6,722,034

SFY 20 SFY 20 SFY 20 SFY 20 SFY 20 SFY 20

Assessment Set CY 2021 
$6.95

CY 2019 Assessment 
Collected  $6.47

CY 2020 Assessment 
Collected  $6.80

CY 2019 Assessment to 
Pay to DHHS 

$11,751,393 6/30/20

CY 2020 Assessment 
Collected  $6.80

DHHS payment 
$14,790,000 due 6/30/22

CDC Replacement Credit 
$1,800,000 10/01/20

CY 2020 Assessment 
Collected  $6.80

SFY 20 SFY 20 SFY 20SFY 20 SFY 2020 SFY 2020 DHHS Reports 
Balance Forward $0.00 

SFY 
21

SFY 21 SFY 21 SFY 21 SFY 21 SFY 
21

Assessment Set CY 2022 
$7.00

CY 2020 Assessment 
Collected  $6.80

CY 2021 Assessment 
Collected  $6.95

CY 2020 Assessment 
Paid to DHHS 

$16,570,000 6/30/21

CY 2021 Assessment 
Collected  $6.95

DHHS payment 
$15,130,000 due 6/30/23

CDC Replacement Credit 
$1,800.000 10/01/21

CY 2021 Assessment 
Collected  $6.95

SFY 
21

SFY 21 SFY 
21

SFY 
21

SFY 21 SFY 2021  DHHS Reports 
Balance Forward $0.00

SFY 22 SFY 22 SFY 22 SFY 22 SFY 22 SFY 22

CY 2021

CY 2016

CY 2015

CY 2018

CY 2019

CY 2020

CY 2017

Packet Page Number 30



DHHS Tab D
08-21-2019

22Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

SFY19 SFY18 SFY17 SFY16 SFY15 SFY14 SFY13 SFY12 SFY11 SFY10 SFY09 SFY08
Source 2018/2019 2017/2018 2016/2017 2015/2016 2014/2015 2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012 2010/2011 2009/2010 2008/2009 2007/2008

Actual Total exp 4+7 26,837,646$        26,377,918$        24,657,418$        24,741,423$        26,092,637$      20,945,469$         21,918,042$         21,707,838$      21,961,081$      28,121,414$      17,820,721$      25,454,043$      

VFC 1 CDC Mon Rpt 11,071,713$        10,329,733$        11,259,750$        9,194,539$           8,570,780$        8,070,843$            7,551,690$            7,715,921$        7,549,887$        11,624,679$      5,002,497$        8,588,458$        
317 - not used for children 2 CDC Mon Rpt not provided not provided not provided not provided not provided not provided 156,375$               920,358$            720,612$            1,676,638$        735,871$            2,219,343$        
State Funds 3 St. Ap(5178-513) 273,969$              293,211$              392,339$              302,821$              206,762$            460,501$               482,467$               320,494$            492,762$            573,306$            213,821$            422,798$            

TOTAL GOV'T EXPENDED 4 1+2+3 11,345,682$        10,622,944$        11,652,089$        9,497,360$           8,777,542$        8,531,344$            8,190,532$            8,956,773$        8,763,261$        13,874,623$      5,952,189$        11,230,599$      

beg balance 5 State Approp   12,979,343$        9,915,172$           3,267,370$           (1,107,266)$         3,797,531$        207,631$               3,042,624$            6,102,932$        7,039,214$        12,293,560$      7,759,278$        4,919,231$        
revenue from NHVA* 6 State Approp   9,234,656$           18,819,145$        19,653,132$        19,618,699$        12,410,298$      16,004,025$         10,892,517$         9,690,757$        12,261,538$      8,992,444$        16,402,814$      17,063,492$      

Vaccine Insurers expended 7 State Approp 15,491,964$        15,754,974$        13,005,330$        15,244,063$        17,315,095$      12,414,125$         13,727,510$         12,751,065$      13,197,820$      14,246,791$      11,868,532$      14,223,444$      

year end encumbered 8 State  Approp 214,014$              4,119,258$           3,912,837$           5,360,641$           (1,217,018)$       4,922,400$            2,278,387$            3,498,954$        4,183,155$        2,658,211$        2,636,659$        5,038,824$        
year end cash 9 State  Approp 6,508,021$           8,860,085$           6,002,336$           (2,093,271)$         0 1,124,869$            (2,070,756)$          (456,331)$          1,919,776$        4,381,002$        9,656,901$        2,720,454$        
TOTAL BAL FORWARD 10 (5+6) -7 6,722,035$           12,979,343$        9,915,172$           3,267,370$           (1,107,266)$       3,797,531$            207,631$               3,042,624$        6,102,932$        7,039,213$        12,293,560$      7,759,279$        

CDC end of fiscal year credit 11 CDC Vtracks 1,856,544$           4,282,619$           3,564,068$           4,377,668$           not provided not provided not provided N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Reimbursement from Providers and Excise Tax 6A State Approp   19,863$                 13,916$                 37,311$              29,970$                  119,460$               
Added into this account

Source:  From Beth Daly 603-271-4927 on August 21, 2019

Note:  NHVA as % of total budget 57.72% 59.73% 52.74% 61.61% 66.36% 59.27% 62.63% 58.74% 60.10% 50.66% 66.60% 55.88%

Packet Page Number 31



DHHS Tab D Edits
- 09-17-2019

23Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

Updated 8/21/19 This is Final SFY 2019 PROJECTED Year end calcuations to bring cash forward
Projection by DHHS 8/21/2019

Source 2019/2020 Forcast 2018/2019 Final 2017/2018 2016/2017 2015/2016 2014/2015 2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012 2010/2011 2009/2010 2008/2009 2007/2008
Actual Total exp 0 4+7 28,844,638$            26,837,646$       26,377,918$       24,657,418$       24,741,423$       26,092,636$     20,945,469$        21,918,042$        21,707,838$     21,961,081$     28,121,414$     17,820,721$     25,454,043$     

7.48%

VFC 1 CDC Mon Rpt 10,097,211$            11,071,713$       10,329,733$       11,259,750$       9,194,539$          8,570,780$       8,070,843$          7,551,690$          7,715,921$       7,549,887$       11,624,679$     5,002,497$       8,588,458$       
317 - not used for children 2 156,375$             920,358$          720,612$          1,676,638$       735,871$          2,219,343$       
State GF 3 St. Ap(5178-513) 274,000$                  273,969$             293,211$             392,339$             302,821$             206,762$          460,501$             482,467$             320,494$          492,762$          573,306$          213,821$          422,798$          

TOTAL GOV'T EXPENDED 4 1+2+3 10,371,211$            11,345,682$       10,622,944$       11,652,089$       9,497,360$          8,777,542$       8,531,344$          8,190,532$          8,956,773$       8,763,261$       13,874,623$     5,952,189$       11,230,599$     

beg balance 5 State Approp   6,722,034$              12,979,343$       9,915,173$          3,267,371$          (1,107,265)$        3,797,531$       207,631$             3,042,624$          6,102,932$       7,039,214$       12,293,560$     7,759,278$       4,919,231$       
revenue from NHVA* (paid by NHVA to DHHS prior to SFY e 6 State Approp   8,769,930$              9,234,656$          18,819,145$       19,653,132$       19,618,699$       12,410,298$     16,004,025$        10,892,517$        9,690,757$       12,261,538$     8,992,444$       16,402,814$     17,063,492$     
Additional payment by NHVA to DHHS to bring bal fwd to zero 2,981,464$              

Vaccine Insurers expended (Total EXP minus other fund 7 Line 0 - line 4 18,473,427$            15,491,964$        15,754,974$       13,005,330$       15,244,063$       17,315,094$     12,414,125$        13,727,510$        12,751,065$     13,197,820$     14,246,791$     11,868,532$     14,223,444$     

year end encumbered 8 State  Approp 214,014                 4,119,258$          3,912,837$          5,360,641$          (1,217,018)$      4,922,400$          2,278,387$          3,498,954$       4,183,155$       2,658,211$       2,636,659$       5,038,824$       
year end cash 9 State  Approp 6,508,021             8,860,085$          6,002,336$          (2,093,271)$        0 1,124,869$          (2,070,756)$         (456,331)$         1,919,776$       4,381,002$       9,656,901$       2,720,454$       
TOTAL BAL FORWARD 10 (5+6) -7 0$                           6,722,034$          12,979,343$       9,915,173$          3,267,371$          (1,107,265)$      3,797,531$          207,631$             3,042,624$       6,102,932$       7,039,213$       12,293,560$     7,759,279$       

Reimbursement from Providers and Excise Tax 6A State Approp   -$                     19,863$               13,916$               37,311$            29,970$                119,460$             
Added into this account
CDC end of fiscal year credit 11 1,900,000                 1,856,544             4,282,619             3,564,068             4,377,668             not provided not provided not provided N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Source:  From Beth Daly 603-271-4927 on August 8, 2018
Updated by Beth 8/21/19

Note:  NHVA as % of total budget 64.04% 57.72% 59.73% 52.74% 61.61% 66.36% 59.27% 62.63% 58.74% 60.10% 50.66% 66.60% 55.88%
64.04% 57.72% 59.73% 52.74% 61.61% 66.36% 59.27% 62.63% 58.74% 60.10% 50.66% 66.60% 55.88%

re: Line 11 above for 2018/2019: we 
understand that this credit was 
received as of 10/1/18 and is 
included in the balance forward of 
$6.722M above./jhh

John Hastings:
Calculated payment by NHVA to DHHS in June 2020 after 
applying Bal Fwd of $6,722,034. Assumes receipt of CDC credit 
in Oct 2018 of $1,856.544 is included in Balance Forward of 
$6,722,034. /jhh 9/17/19 

John Hastings:
ties to amount paid 
by NHVA to DHHS 
in June 2018/jhh 9-
17-19

John Hastings:
ties to amount paid 
by NHVA to DHHS 
in June 2019/jhh 9-
17-19

John Hastings:
Proposed additional payment at 6/30/2020 to clear 
projected underpayment of $2,981,464.

2019 Expended           $15,754,974
Less: Bal fwd               (6,722,034)
Payment required         $8,769,930
Pay expected underpayment   $2,981,464
Total Payment proposed $11,751,393 paid June 2020

Projected 2020 Expended  $18,473,427
Actual 2019 Expended      $15,491,964
Difference above                2,981,464

Packet Page Number 32



24Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine 
Association

DHHS Tab C
08-01-2019

Vaccine Forecast for SFY 20
New Hampshire Immunization Program

SFY 19 July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 SFY 19 Total Cost
SFY 20 Total Projected 

Cost

VACCINE

2018 Price 
per Doses 

Cost
1st Qtr 
Totals Total

2nd qtr 
totals Total

3rd qtr 
totals Total

4th qtr 
totals

2019 Price 
Per Doses 

Cost Total

Total 
ordered in 

SFY 19
.5% 

wastage

SFY 
2019 
+.5% Roundings

 2019 Price 
Per Doses 

Cost 
DT 51.56$        10 515.60$                   11 567.16$                  18 928.08$                 15 54.63$       819.45$                  54 2,830.29$                  0 54 60 54.63$           3,277.80$                     54.63$                     2,964.77$                
ACTHIB 9.23$          6190 57,133.70$              6325 58,379.75$             6070 56,026.10$            5485 9.48$         51,997.80$             24070 223,537.35$              120 24190 24200 9.48$             229,416.00$                 16.51$                     399,382.68$            
HIBERIX 9.65$          280 2,702.00$                330 3,184.50$               220 2,123.00$              270 9.46$         2,554.20$               1100 10,563.70$                6 1106 1100 9.46$             10,406.00$                   10.85$                     11,994.68$              
DAPTACEL 17.61$        370 6,515.70$                410 7,220.10$               260 4,578.60$              410 18.07$       7,408.70$               1450 25,723.10$                7 1457 1500 18.07$           27,105.00$                   30.84$                     44,941.59$              
INFANRIX 18.19$        1970 35,834.30$              2010 36,561.90$             1650 30,013.50$            1860 18.67$       34,726.20$             7490 137,135.90$              37 7527 7500 18.67$           140,025.00$                 24.71$                     186,003.29$            
ENGERIX B 14.03$        1770 24,833.10$              1940 27,218.20$             2020 28,340.60$            3620 16.02$       57,992.40$             9350 138,384.30$              47 9397 9400 16.02$           150,588.00$                 23.72$                     222,890.91$            
RECOMBIVAX HB 12.30$        3030 37,269.00$              3640 44,772.00$             2930 36,039.00$            1520 12.30$       18,696.00$             11120 136,776.00$              56 11176 11200 12.30$           137,760.00$                 23.95$                     267,655.62$            
HAVRIX 19.58$        8990 176,024.20$            8180 160,164.40$           7830 153,311.40$          8840 20.52$       181,396.80$           33840 670,896.80$              169 34009 34000 20.52$           697,680.00$                 32.89$                     1,118,562.59$         
VAQTA 19.29$        680 13,117.20$              740 14,274.60$             550 10,609.50$            610 19.66$       11,992.60$             2580 49,993.90$                13 2593 2600 19.66$           51,116.00$                   32.66$                     84,684.11$              
IPOL 13.30$        680 9,044.00$                690 9,177.00$               570 7,581.00$              580 13.55$       7,859.00$               2520 33,661.00$                13 2533 2500 13.55$           33,875.00$                   33.53$                     84,918.08$              
KINRIX 40.19$        2790 112,130.10$            2850 114,541.50$           2050 82,389.50$            2510 41.31$       103,688.10$           10200 412,749.20$              51 10251 10300 41.31$           425,493.00$                 52.12$                     534,282.12$            
QUADRACEL 39.57$        640 25,324.80$              780 30,864.60$             670 26,511.90$            730 40.66$       29,681.80$             2820 112,383.10$              14 2834 2800 40.66$           113,848.00$                 53.13$                     150,575.73$            
M-M-R  II 21.05$        3320 69,886.00$              3210 67,570.50$             3000 63,150.00$            4250 21.22$       90,185.00$             13780 290,791.50$              69 13849 13800 21.22$           292,836.00$                 75.04$                     1,039,221.46$         
PROQUAD 125.11$      3530 441,638.30$            3070 384,087.70$           2960 370,325.60$          3700 131.40$     486,180.00$           13260 1,682,231.60$           66 13326 13300 131.40$         1,747,620.00$              214.37$                   2,856,758.93$         
PEDIARIX 57.97$        4110 238,256.70$            4410 255,647.70$           4610 267,241.70$          3530 59.05$       208,446.50$           16660 969,592.60$              83 16743 16700 59.05$           986,135.00$                 79.15$                     1,325,232.20$         
PENTACEL 58.33$        5190 302,732.70$            4920 286,983.60$           5235 305,357.55$          5215 59.42$       309,875.30$           20560 1,204,949.15$           103 20663 20700 59.42$           1,229,994.00$              96.14$                     1,986,521.59$         
PNEUMOVAX  23 53.11$        55 2,921.05$                41 2,177.51$               23 1,221.53$              24 56.30$       1,351.20$               143 7,671.29$                  1 144 160 56.30$           9,008.00$                     100.19$                   14,398.81$              
PREVNAR 13 TM 131.77$      11290 1,487,683.30$         11690 1,540,391.30$        11430 1,506,131.10$       10800 137.01$     1,479,708.00$        45210 6,013,913.70$           226 45436 45400 137.01$         6,220,254.00$              180.05$                   8,180,760.80$         
ROTARIX 92.85$        1270 117,919.50$            1540 142,989.00$           1500 139,275.00$          1260 94.69$       119,309.40$           5570 519,492.90$              28 5598 5600 94.69$           530,264.00$                 120.95$                   677,059.96$            
ROTATEQ 70.49$        5940 418,710.60$            5910 416,595.90$           5990 422,235.10$          5500 70.49$       387,695.00$           23340 1,645,236.60$           117 23457 23500 70.49$           1,656,515.00$              82.89$                     1,944,325.86$         
VARIVAX 98.24$        3440 337,945.60$            3140 308,473.60$           3050 299,632.00$          3720 104.09$     387,214.80$           13350 1,333,266.00$           67 13417 13400 104.09$         1,394,806.00$              129.30$                   1,734,785.78$         

-$                         
Adolescent -$                         
ADACEL 30.89$        980 30,272.20$              770 23,785.30$             710 21,931.90$            880 31.75$       27,940.00$             3340 103,929.40$              17 3357 3400 31.75$           107,950.00$                 45.50$                     152,729.85$            
BEXSERO 129.06$      4907 633,297.42$            2168 279,802.08$           2165 279,414.90$          2725 135.48$     369,183.00$           11965 1,561,697.40$           60 12025 12000 135.48$         1,625,760.00$              170.75$                   2,053,238.87$         
BOOSTRIX 31.37$        3770 118,264.90$            2980 93,482.60$             2080 65,249.60$            2920 32.24$       94,140.80$             11750 371,137.90$              59 11809 11800 32.24$           380,432.00$                 41.19$                     486,402.41$            
GARDASIL9 168.10$      10340 1,738,154.00$         8280 1,391,868.00$        6180 1,038,858.00$       7150 178.14$     1,273,701.00$        31950 5,442,581.00$           160 32110 32100 178.14$         5,718,294.00$              217.11$                   6,971,347.82$         
MENACTRA 91.81$        8710 799,665.10$            6305 578,862.05$           4365 400,750.65$          5350 93.45$       499,957.50$           24730 2,279,235.30$           124 24854 24900 93.45$           2,326,905.00$              122.31$                   3,039,849.93$         
MENVEO 92.10$        1170 107,757.00$            890 81,969.00$             535 49,273.50$            790 94.84$       74,923.60$             3385 313,923.10$              17 3402 3400 94.84$           322,456.00$                 130.75$                   444,801.69$            
TENIVAC 20.05$        89 1,784.45$                95 1,904.75$               72 1,443.60$              74 20.60$       1,524.40$               330 6,657.20$                  2 332 300 20.60$           6,180.00$                     33.83$                     11,219.72$              
TRUMENBA 104.79$      680 71,257.20$              270 28,293.30$             230 24,101.70$            320 108.95$     34,864.00$             1500 158,516.20$              8 1508 1500 108.95$         163,425.00$                 133.62$                   201,432.15$            

7,418,589.72$         6,391,809.60$        5,694,045.61$       6,355,012.55$        25,859,457.48$         26,739,423.80$            36,228,943.99$            

Commited State Doses to Purchase

Influenza Vaccine
1st Qtr 
Totals

2nd qtr 
totals

3rd qtr 
totals

4th qtr 
totals Spent this Season

Influenza ordered 
for Next Season

2019 Price per 
Dose

SANOFI.25 Baby fl 15.11$        9210 139,163.10$            4590 69,354.90$             1900 28,709.00$            380 15.11$       5,741.80$               16080 242,968.80$              63000 13.75$           866,250.00$                 18.31$                     1,153,530.00$         SANOFI.5 Kid flu
SANOFI.5 Kid flu 15.11$        19630 296,609.30$            16100 243,271.00$           3310 50,014.10$            290 15.11$       4,381.90$               39330 594,276.30$              51000 13.50$           688,500.00$                 16.82$                     857,820.00$            GSK.5 Kid fluarix
GSK.5 Kid fluarix 13.50$        35220 475,470.00$            27330 412,956.30$           0 -$                      0 13.50$       -$                       62550 844,425.00$              35000 13.50$           472,500.00$                 16.82$                     588,700.00$            GSK.5 Flulaval
GSK.5 Flulaval 13.50$        2300 31,050.00$              18140 274,095.40$           6660 89,910.00$            800 13.50$       10,800.00$             27900 376,650.00$              400 15.55$           6,220.00$                     24.05$                     9,620.00$                .5 Flucelvax
.5 Flucelvax 14.43$        10 144.30$                   60 906.60$                  0 -$                      0 14.43$       -$                       70 1,010.10$                  3800 18.88$           71,744.00$                   23.70$                     90,060.00$              flumist

942,436.70$            1,000,584.20$        168,633.10$          20,923.70$             2,059,330.20$           2,105,214.00$              2,699,730.00$              

(45,883.80)$        
difference

8,361,026.42$         7,392,393.80$        5,862,678.71$       6,375,936.25$        27,918,787.68$         28,844,637.80$            Estimated cost of vaccin 38,928,673.99$       -26%
on private market

VFC Estimated Vaccine Funds Contribution (10,097,211.00)$           This amount is for FFY18. Amount is subject to change. 
updated 7/30/19 Estimated State Funds Contribution (274,000.00)$                Final amount will be available in October 2019.

SFY20 state budget is not yet approved.
Actual TOTAL doses distributed taken from monthly Spend Plan Report NHVA Estimated Cost 18,473,426.80$            

Unspent NHVA revenue from prior SFYs TBD
April 2019 CDC Prices https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/programs/vfc/awardees/vaccine-management/price-list/2018/2018-04-01.html NHVA share of replacement credits (3,500,000.00)$             4-year average. We will know exact amount on October 1st.
April 2018 CDC Prices https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/programs/vfc/awardees/vaccine-management/price-list/2018/2018-04-01.html DHHS Program Administrative Costs Request 285,220.00$                 See worksheet e for detail.

NHVA Funds Requested for SFY20 TBD based on surplus Note that the SFY19 NHVA payment was already set in Sept 
2018

Private Price*

Pediatric vaccine
plus
influenza 
equals

Packet Page Number 33



Contact
Patrick Miller, MPH
Executive Director, NHVA
pmiller@helmsco.com
603-225-6633

Copyright © 2003-2020 New Hampshire Vaccine Association 25Packet Page Number 34

mailto:pmiller@helmsco.com


/Χ[���������

∃ΘΧΤΦ�ΘΗ�&ΚΤΓΕςΘΤΥ�ΧΠΦ�/ΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς
0ΓΨ�∗ΧΟΡΥϑΚΤΓ�8ΧΕΕΚΠΓ�#ΥΥΘΕΚΧςΚΘΠ
Ε�Θ�∗ΓΝΟΥ�	�%ΘΟΡΧΠ[
1ΠΓ�2ΚΝΝΥ∆ΩΤ[�5ςΤΓΓς��5ΩΚςΓ����
%ΘΠΕΘΤΦ��0∗�����������

9Γ �ΧΤΓ �ΡΝΓΧΥΓΦ �ςΘ �ΕΘΠΗΚΤΟ �ΘΩΤ �ΩΠΦΓΤΥςΧΠΦΚΠΙ �ΘΗ �ςϑΓ �ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ �ΨΓ �ΧΤΓ �ςΘ �ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓ �ΗΘΤ �0ΓΨ �∗ΧΟΡΥϑΚΤΓ �8ΧΕΕΚΠΓ
#ΥΥΘΕΚΧςΚΘΠ�ΗΘΤ�ςϑΓ�[ΓΧΤ�ΓΠΦΓΦ�,ΩΠΓ����������

9Γ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΧΩΦΚς�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ΘΗ�0ΓΨ�∗ΧΟΡΥϑΚΤΓ�8ΧΕΕΚΠΓ�#ΥΥΘΕΚΧςΚΘΠ��ΨϑΚΕϑ�ΕΘΟΡΤΚΥΓ�ςϑΓ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ΘΗ
ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΡΘΥΚςΚΘΠ�ΧΥ�ΘΗ��,ΩΠΓ�����������ςϑΓ�ΤΓΝΧςΓΦ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ΘΗ�ΧΕςΚΞΚςΚΓΥ��ΗΩΠΕςΚΘΠΧΝ�ΓΖΡΓΠΥΓΥ��ΧΠΦ�ΕΧΥϑ�ΗΝΘΨΥ�ΗΘΤ
ςϑΓ�[ΓΧΤ�ςϑΓΠ�ΓΠΦΓΦ��ΧΠΦ�ςϑΓ�ΤΓΝΧςΓΦ�ΠΘςΓΥ�ςΘ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ��ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ��

#ΩΦΚς�1∆ΛΓΕςΚΞΓ
6ϑΓ� Θ∆ΛΓΕςΚΞΓ� ΘΗ� ΘΩΤ� ΧΩΦΚς� ΚΥ� ςϑΓ� ΓΖΡΤΓΥΥΚΘΠ� ΘΗ� ΧΠ� ΘΡΚΠΚΘΠ� Χ∆ΘΩς� ΨϑΓςϑΓΤ� [ΘΩΤ� ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ� ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ� ΧΤΓ� ΗΧΚΤΝ[
ΡΤΓΥΓΠςΓΦ��ΚΠ�ΧΝΝ�ΟΧςΓΤΚΧΝ�ΤΓΥΡΓΕςΥ��ΚΠ�ΕΘΠΗΘΤΟΚς[�ΨΚςϑ�7�5��ΙΓΠΓΤΧΝΝ[�ΧΕΕΓΡςΓΦ�ΧΕΕΘΩΠςΚΠΙ�ΡΤΚΠΕΚΡΝΓΥ��1ΩΤ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΨΚΝΝ
∆Γ�ΕΘΠΦΩΕςΓΦ�ΚΠ�ΧΕΕΘΤΦΧΠΕΓ�ΨΚςϑ�ΧΩΦΚςΚΠΙ�ΥςΧΠΦΧΤΦΥ�ΙΓΠΓΤΧΝΝ[�ΧΕΕΓΡςΓΦ�ΚΠ�ςϑΓ�7ΠΚςΓΦ�5ςΧςΓΥ�ΘΗ�#ΟΓΤΚΕΧ� ΧΠΦ�ΨΚΝΝ
ΚΠΕΝΩΦΓ�ςΓΥςΥ�ΘΗ�[ΘΩΤ�ΧΕΕΘΩΠςΚΠΙ�ΤΓΕΘΤΦΥ�ΧΠΦ�ΘςϑΓΤ�ΡΤΘΕΓΦΩΤΓΥ�ΨΓ�ΕΘΠΥΚΦΓΤ�ΠΓΕΓΥΥΧΤ[�ςΘ�ΓΠΧ∆ΝΓ�ΩΥ�ςΘ�ΓΖΡΤΓΥΥ�ΥΩΕϑ
ΧΠ�ΘΡΚΠΚΘΠ��9Γ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΚΥΥΩΓ�Χ�ΨΤΚςςΓΠ�ΤΓΡΘΤς�ΩΡΘΠ�ΕΘΟΡΝΓςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ�ΘΩΤ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΘΗ�0ΓΨ�∗ΧΟΡΥϑΚΤΓ�8ΧΕΕΚΠΓ�#ΥΥΘΕΚΧςΚΘΠ∝Υ
ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ��1ΩΤ�ΤΓΡΘΤς�ΨΚΝΝ�∆Γ�ΧΦΦΤΓΥΥΓΦ�ςΘ�∃ΘΧΤΦ�ΘΗ�&ΚΤΓΕςΘΤΥ�ΘΗ�0ΓΨ�∗ΧΟΡΥϑΚΤΓ�8ΧΕΕΚΠΓ�#ΥΥΘΕΚΧςΚΘΠ�
9Γ�ΕΧΠΠΘς�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓ�ΧΥΥΩΤΧΠΕΓ�ςϑΧς�ΧΠ�ΩΠΟΘΦΚΗΚΓΦ�ΘΡΚΠΚΘΠ�ΨΚΝΝ�∆Γ�ΓΖΡΤΓΥΥΓΦ��%ΚΤΕΩΟΥςΧΠΕΓΥ�ΟΧ[�ΧΤΚΥΓ�ΚΠ�ΨϑΚΕϑ�Κς�ΚΥ
ΠΓΕΓΥΥΧΤ[�ΗΘΤ�ΩΥ� ςΘ�ΟΘΦΚΗ[�ΘΩΤ�ΘΡΚΠΚΘΠ�ΘΤ�ΧΦΦ�ΧΠ�ΓΟΡϑΧΥΚΥ�ΘΗ�ΟΧςςΓΤ�ΘΤ�ΘςϑΓΤ�ΟΧςςΓΤ�ΡΧΤΧΙΤΧΡϑ�� +Η�ΘΩΤ�ΘΡΚΠΚΘΠ�ΚΥ
ΘςϑΓΤ�ςϑΧΠ�ΩΠΟΘΦΚΗΚΓΦ��ΨΓ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΦΚΥΕΩΥΥ�ςϑΓ�ΤΓΧΥΘΠΥ�ΨΚςϑ�[ΘΩ�ΚΠ�ΧΦΞΧΠΕΓ��+Η��ΗΘΤ�ΧΠ[�ΤΓΧΥΘΠ��ΨΓ�ΧΤΓ�ΩΠΧ∆ΝΓ�ςΘ�ΕΘΟΡΝΓςΓ
ςϑΓ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΘΤ�ΧΤΓ�ΩΠΧ∆ΝΓ�ςΘ�ΗΘΤΟ�ΘΤ�ϑΧΞΓ�ΠΘς�ΗΘΤΟΓΦ�ΧΠ�ΘΡΚΠΚΘΠ��ΨΓ�ΟΧ[�ΦΓΕΝΚΠΓ�ςΘ�ΓΖΡΤΓΥΥ�ΧΠ�ΘΡΚΠΚΘΠ�ΘΤ�ΨΚςϑΦΤΧΨ
ΗΤΘΟ�ςϑΚΥ�ΓΠΙΧΙΓΟΓΠς�

#ΩΦΚς�2ΤΘΕΓΦΩΤΓΥ
1ΩΤ�ΡΤΘΕΓΦΩΤΓΥ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΚΠΕΝΩΦΓ�ςΓΥςΥ�ΘΗ�ΦΘΕΩΟΓΠςΧΤ[�ΓΞΚΦΓΠΕΓ�ΥΩΡΡΘΤςΚΠΙ�ςϑΓ�ςΤΧΠΥΧΕςΚΘΠΥ�ΤΓΕΘΤΦΓΦ� ΚΠ� ςϑΓ�ΧΕΕΘΩΠςΥ�
ςΓΥςΥ�ΘΗ�ςϑΓ�Ρϑ[ΥΚΕΧΝ�ΓΖΚΥςΓΠΕΓ�ΘΗ�ΚΠΞΓΠςΘΤΚΓΥ��ΧΠΦ�ΦΚΤΓΕς�ΕΘΠΗΚΤΟΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ�ΤΓΕΓΚΞΧ∆ΝΓΥ�ΧΠΦ�ΕΓΤςΧΚΠ�ΧΥΥΓςΥ�ΧΠΦ�ΝΚΧ∆ΚΝΚςΚΓΥ
∆[�ΕΘΤΤΓΥΡΘΠΦΓΠΕΓ�ΨΚςϑ� ΥΓΝΓΕςΓΦ� ΚΠΦΚΞΚΦΩΧΝΥ�� ΗΩΠΦΚΠΙ� ΥΘΩΤΕΓΥ�� ΕΤΓΦΚςΘΤΥ�� ΧΠΦ� ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ� ΚΠΥςΚςΩςΚΘΠΥ��9Γ�ΨΚΝΝ� ΧΝΥΘ
ΤΓΣΩΓΥς�ΨΤΚςςΓΠ�ΤΓΡΤΓΥΓΠςΧςΚΘΠΥ�ΗΤΘΟ�ςϑΓ�1ΤΙΧΠΚ∴ΧςΚΘΠ∝Υ�ΧςςΘΤΠΓ[Υ�ΧΥ�ΡΧΤς�ΘΗ�ςϑΓ�ΓΠΙΧΙΓΟΓΠς��ΧΠΦ�ςϑΓ[�ΟΧ[�∆ΚΝΝ�[ΘΩ
ΗΘΤ�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΦΚΠΙ�ςΘ�ςϑΚΥ�ΚΠΣΩΚΤ[��#ς�ςϑΓ�ΕΘΠΕΝΩΥΚΘΠ�ΘΗ�ΘΩΤ�ΧΩΦΚς��ΨΓ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΤΓΣΩΚΤΓ�ΕΓΤςΧΚΠ�ΨΤΚςςΓΠ�ΤΓΡΤΓΥΓΠςΧςΚΘΠΥ�ΗΤΘΟ
[ΘΩ�Χ∆ΘΩς�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ΧΠΦ�ΤΓΝΧςΓΦ�ΟΧςςΓΤΥ�

#Π�ΧΩΦΚς� ΚΠΕΝΩΦΓΥ� ΓΖΧΟΚΠΚΠΙ�� ΘΠ�Χ� ςΓΥς� ∆ΧΥΚΥ�� ΓΞΚΦΓΠΕΓ� ΥΩΡΡΘΤςΚΠΙ� ςϑΓ�ΧΟΘΩΠςΥ� ΧΠΦ� ΦΚΥΕΝΘΥΩΤΓΥ� ΚΠ� ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ
ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�� ςϑΓΤΓΗΘΤΓ��ΘΩΤ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΨΚΝΝ� ΚΠΞΘΝΞΓ�ΛΩΦΙΟΓΠς�Χ∆ΘΩς� ςϑΓ�ΠΩΟ∆ΓΤ�ΘΗ�ςΤΧΠΥΧΕςΚΘΠΥ� ςΘ�∆Γ�ΓΖΧΟΚΠΓΦ�ΧΠΦ� ςϑΓ
ΧΤΓΧΥ� ςΘ� ∆Γ� ςΓΥςΓΦ�� #Π� ΧΩΦΚς� ΧΝΥΘ� ΚΠΕΝΩΦΓΥ� ΓΞΧΝΩΧςΚΠΙ� ςϑΓ� ΧΡΡΤΘΡΤΚΧςΓΠΓΥΥ� ΘΗ� ΧΕΕΘΩΠςΚΠΙ� ΡΘΝΚΕΚΓΥ� ΩΥΓΦ� ΧΠΦ� ςϑΓ
ΤΓΧΥΘΠΧ∆ΝΓΠΓΥΥ� ΘΗ� ΥΚΙΠΚΗΚΕΧΠς� ΧΕΕΘΩΠςΚΠΙ� ΓΥςΚΟΧςΓΥ� ΟΧΦΓ� ∆[� ΟΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς�� ΧΥ� ΨΓΝΝ� ΧΥ� ΓΞΧΝΩΧςΚΠΙ� ςϑΓ� ΘΞΓΤΧΝΝ
ΡΤΓΥΓΠςΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ��9Γ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΡΝΧΠ�ΧΠΦ�ΡΓΤΗΘΤΟ�ςϑΓ�ΧΩΦΚς�ςΘ�Θ∆ςΧΚΠ�ΤΓΧΥΘΠΧ∆ΝΓ�ΧΥΥΩΤΧΠΕΓ�Χ∆ΘΩς
ΨϑΓςϑΓΤ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ΧΤΓ�ΗΤΓΓ�ΘΗ�ΟΧςΓΤΚΧΝ�ΟΚΥΥςΧςΓΟΓΠς��ΨϑΓςϑΓΤ�ΗΤΘΟ�����ΓΤΤΘΤΥ������ΗΤΧΩΦΩΝΓΠς�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ
ΤΓΡΘΤςΚΠΙ������ΟΚΥΧΡΡΤΘΡΤΚΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ�ΧΥΥΓςΥ��ΘΤ�����ΞΚΘΝΧςΚΘΠΥ�ΘΗ�ΝΧΨΥ�ΘΤ�ΙΘΞΓΤΠΟΓΠςΧΝ�ΤΓΙΩΝΧςΚΘΠΥ�ςϑΧς�ΧΤΓ�ΧςςΤΚ∆ΩςΧ∆ΝΓ
ςΘ�ςϑΓ�1ΤΙΧΠΚ∴ΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΤ�ςΘ�ΧΕςΥ�∆[�ΟΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΘΤ�ΓΟΡΝΘ[ΓΓΥ�ΧΕςΚΠΙ�ΘΠ�∆ΓϑΧΝΗ�ΘΗ�ςϑΓ�1ΤΙΧΠΚ∴ΧςΚΘΠ�

Packet Page Number 35



�

∃ΓΕΧΩΥΓ�ΘΗ� ςϑΓ� ΚΠϑΓΤΓΠς� ΝΚΟΚςΧςΚΘΠΥ� ΘΗ� ΧΠ� ΧΩΦΚς�� ΕΘΟ∆ΚΠΓΦ�ΨΚςϑ� ςϑΓ� ΚΠϑΓΤΓΠς� ΝΚΟΚςΧςΚΘΠΥ�ΘΗ� ΚΠςΓΤΠΧΝ� ΕΘΠςΤΘΝ�� ΧΠΦ
∆ΓΕΧΩΥΓ�ΨΓ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΠΘς�ΡΓΤΗΘΤΟ�Χ�ΦΓςΧΚΝΓΦ�ΓΖΧΟΚΠΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ�ΧΝΝ�ςΤΧΠΥΧΕςΚΘΠΥ��ςϑΓΤΓ�ΚΥ�Χ�ΤΚΥΜ�ςϑΧς�ΟΧςΓΤΚΧΝ�ΟΚΥΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ
ΟΧ[�ΓΖΚΥς�ΧΠΦ�ΠΘς�∆Γ�ΦΓςΓΕςΓΦ�∆[�ΩΥ��ΓΞΓΠ�ςϑΘΩΙϑ�ςϑΓ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΚΥ�ΡΤΘΡΓΤΝ[�ΡΝΧΠΠΓΦ�ΧΠΦ�ΡΓΤΗΘΤΟΓΦ�ΚΠ�ΧΕΕΘΤΦΧΠΕΓ�ΨΚςϑ
7�5��ΙΓΠΓΤΧΝΝ[�ΧΕΕΓΡςΓΦ�ΧΩΦΚςΚΠΙ�ΥςΧΠΦΧΤΦΥ��+Π�ΧΦΦΚςΚΘΠ��ΧΠ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΚΥ�ΠΘς�ΦΓΥΚΙΠΓΦ�ςΘ�ΦΓςΓΕς�ΚΟΟΧςΓΤΚΧΝ�ΟΚΥΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ
ΘΤ� ΞΚΘΝΧςΚΘΠΥ� ΘΗ� ΝΧΨΥ� ΘΤ� ΙΘΞΓΤΠΟΓΠςΧΝ� ΤΓΙΩΝΧςΚΘΠΥ� ςϑΧς� ΦΘ�ΠΘς� ϑΧΞΓ� Χ� ΦΚΤΓΕς� ΧΠΦ�ΟΧςΓΤΚΧΝ� ΓΗΗΓΕς� ΘΠ� ςϑΓ� ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ
ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ��∗ΘΨΓΞΓΤ� �ΨΓ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΚΠΗΘΤΟ�ςϑΓ�ΧΡΡΤΘΡΤΚΧςΓ�ΝΓΞΓΝ�ΘΗ�ΟΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΘΗ�ΧΠ[�ΟΧςΓΤΚΧΝ�ΓΤΤΘΤΥ��ΧΠ[�ΗΤΧΩΦΩΝΓΠς
ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΤΓΡΘΤςΚΠΙ��ΘΤ�ΟΚΥΧΡΡΤΘΡΤΚΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ�ΧΥΥΓςΥ�ςϑΧς�ΕΘΟΓΥ�ςΘ�ΘΩΤ�ΧςςΓΠςΚΘΠ��9Γ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΧΝΥΘ�ΚΠΗΘΤΟ�ςϑΓ�ΧΡΡΤΘΡΤΚΧςΓ
ΝΓΞΓΝ�ΘΗ�ΟΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΘΗ�ΧΠ[�ΞΚΘΝΧςΚΘΠΥ�ΘΗ�ΝΧΨΥ�ΘΤ�ΙΘΞΓΤΠΟΓΠςΧΝ�ΤΓΙΩΝΧςΚΘΠΥ�ςϑΧς�ΕΘΟΓ�ςΘ�ΘΩΤ�ΧςςΓΠςΚΘΠ��ΩΠΝΓΥΥ�ΕΝΓΧΤΝ[
ΚΠΕΘΠΥΓΣΩΓΠςΚΧΝ��1ΩΤ�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΚΝΚς[�ΧΥ�ΧΩΦΚςΘΤΥ�ΚΥ�ΝΚΟΚςΓΦ�ςΘ�ςϑΓ�ΡΓΤΚΘΦ�ΕΘΞΓΤΓΦ�∆[�ΘΩΤ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΧΠΦ�ΦΘΓΥ�ΠΘς�ΓΖςΓΠΦ�ςΘ
ΧΠ[�ΝΧςΓΤ�ΡΓΤΚΘΦΥ�ΗΘΤ�ΨϑΚΕϑ�ΨΓ�ΧΤΓ�ΠΘς�ΓΠΙΧΙΓΦ�ΧΥ�ΧΩΦΚςΘΤΥ�

1ΩΤ� ΧΩΦΚς� ΨΚΝΝ� ΚΠΕΝΩΦΓ� Θ∆ςΧΚΠΚΠΙ� ΧΠ� ΩΠΦΓΤΥςΧΠΦΚΠΙ� ΘΗ� ςϑΓ�1ΤΙΧΠΚ∴ΧςΚΘΠ� ΧΠΦ� ΚςΥ� ΓΠΞΚΤΘΠΟΓΠς�� ΚΠΕΝΩΦΚΠΙ� ΚΠςΓΤΠΧΝ
ΕΘΠςΤΘΝ��ΥΩΗΗΚΕΚΓΠς�ςΘ�ΧΥΥΓΥΥ�ςϑΓ�ΤΚΥΜΥ�ΘΗ�ΟΧςΓΤΚΧΝ�ΟΚΥΥςΧςΓΟΓΠς�ΘΗ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ΧΠΦ�ςΘ�ΦΓΥΚΙΠ�ςϑΓ�ΠΧςΩΤΓ�
ςΚΟΚΠΙ��ΧΠΦ�ΓΖςΓΠς�ΘΗ�ΗΩΤςϑΓΤ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΡΤΘΕΓΦΩΤΓΥ��#Π�ΧΩΦΚς�ΚΥ�ΠΘς�ΦΓΥΚΙΠΓΦ�ςΘ�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓ�ΧΥΥΩΤΧΠΕΓ�ΘΠ�ΚΠςΓΤΠΧΝ�ΕΘΠςΤΘΝ�ΘΤ
ςΘ�ΚΦΓΠςΚΗ[�ΦΓΗΚΕΚΓΠΕΚΓΥ�ΚΠ�ΚΠςΓΤΠΧΝ�ΕΘΠςΤΘΝ��#ΕΕΘΤΦΚΠΙΝ[��ΨΓ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΓΖΡΤΓΥΥ�ΠΘ�ΥΩΕϑ�ΘΡΚΠΚΘΠ��∗ΘΨΓΞΓΤ��ΦΩΤΚΠΙ�ςϑΓ�ΧΩΦΚς�
ΨΓ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΕΘΟΟΩΠΚΕΧςΓ�ςΘ�[ΘΩ�ΧΠΦ�ςϑΘΥΓ�ΕϑΧΤΙΓΦ�ΨΚςϑ�ΙΘΞΓΤΠΧΠΕΓ�ΚΠςΓΤΠΧΝ�ΕΘΠςΤΘΝ�ΤΓΝΧςΓΦ�ΟΧςςΓΤΥ�ςϑΧς�ΧΤΓ�ΤΓΣΩΚΤΓΦ�ςΘ
∆Γ�ΕΘΟΟΩΠΚΕΧςΓΦ�ΩΠΦΓΤ�ΡΤΘΗΓΥΥΚΘΠΧΝ�ΥςΧΠΦΧΤΦΥ�

9Γ�ΟΧ[��ΗΤΘΟ�ςΚΟΓ�ςΘ�ςΚΟΓ�ΧΠΦ�ΦΓΡΓΠΦΚΠΙ�ΘΠ�ςϑΓ�ΕΚΤΕΩΟΥςΧΠΕΓΥ��ΩΥΓ�ςϑΚΤΦ�ΡΧΤς[�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓ�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓΤΥ�ΚΠ�ΥΓΤΞΚΠΙ�[ΘΩΤ
ΧΕΕΘΩΠς��9Γ�ΟΧ[�ΥϑΧΤΓ�ΕΘΠΗΚΦΓΠςΚΧΝ�ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ�Χ∆ΘΩς�[ΘΩ�ΨΚςϑ�ςϑΓΥΓ�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓ�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓΤΥ�∆Ως�ΤΓΟΧΚΠ�ΕΘΟΟΚςςΓΦ�ςΘ
ΟΧΚΠςΧΚΠΚΠΙ� ςϑΓ� ΕΘΠΗΚΦΓΠςΚΧΝΚς[� ΧΠΦ� ΥΓΕΩΤΚς[� ΘΗ� [ΘΩΤ� ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ�� #ΕΕΘΤΦΚΠΙΝ[�� ΨΓ� ΟΧΚΠςΧΚΠ� ΚΠςΓΤΠΧΝ� ΡΘΝΚΕΚΓΥ�
ΡΤΘΕΓΦΩΤΓΥ��ΧΠΦ�ΥΧΗΓΙΩΧΤΦΥ�ςΘ�ΡΤΘςΓΕς�ςϑΓ�ΕΘΠΗΚΦΓΠςΚΧΝΚς[�ΘΗ�[ΘΩΤ�ΡΓΤΥΘΠΧΝ�ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ��+Π�ΧΦΦΚςΚΘΠ��ΨΓ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΥΓΕΩΤΓ
ΕΘΠΗΚΦΓΠςΚΧΝΚς[�ΧΙΤΓΓΟΓΠςΥ�ΨΚςϑ�ΧΝΝ�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓ�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓΤΥ�ςΘ�ΟΧΚΠςΧΚΠ�ςϑΓ�ΕΘΠΗΚΦΓΠςΚΧΝΚς[�ΘΗ�[ΘΩΤ�ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ�ΧΠΦ�ΨΓ�ΨΚΝΝ
ςΧΜΓ�ΤΓΧΥΘΠΧ∆ΝΓ�ΡΤΓΕΧΩςΚΘΠΥ�ςΘ�ΦΓςΓΤΟΚΠΓ�ςϑΧς�ςϑΓ[�ϑΧΞΓ�ΧΡΡΤΘΡΤΚΧςΓ�ΡΤΘΕΓΦΩΤΓΥ�ΚΠ�ΡΝΧΕΓ�ςΘ�ΡΤΓΞΓΠς�ςϑΓ�ΩΠΧΩςϑΘΤΚ∴ΓΦ
ΤΓΝΓΧΥΓ� ΘΗ� [ΘΩΤ� ΕΘΠΗΚΦΓΠςΚΧΝ� ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ� ςΘ� ΘςϑΓΤΥ�� +Π� ςϑΓ� ΓΞΓΠς� ςϑΧς� ΨΓ� ΧΤΓ� ΩΠΧ∆ΝΓ� ςΘ� ΥΓΕΩΤΓ� ΧΠ� ΧΡΡΤΘΡΤΚΧςΓ
ΕΘΠΗΚΦΓΠςΚΧΝΚς[� ΧΙΤΓΓΟΓΠς�� [ΘΩ�ΨΚΝΝ� ∆Γ�ΧΥΜΓΦ� ςΘ�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓ� [ΘΩΤ� ΕΘΠΥΓΠς� ΡΤΚΘΤ� ςΘ� ςϑΓ�ΥϑΧΤΚΠΙ� ΘΗ� [ΘΩΤ� ΕΘΠΗΚΦΓΠςΚΧΝ
ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ�ΨΚςϑ�ςϑΓ�ςϑΚΤΦ�ΡΧΤς[�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓ�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓΤ��(ΩΤςϑΓΤΟΘΤΓ��ΨΓ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΤΓΟΧΚΠ�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΝΓ�ΗΘΤ�ςϑΓ�ΨΘΤΜ�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓΦ
∆[�ΧΠ[�ΥΩΕϑ�ςϑΚΤΦ�ΡΧΤς[�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓ�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓΤΥ�

1ςϑΓΤ�5ΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ
9Γ�ΟΧ[�ΧΥΥΚΥς�[ΘΩΤ�∆ΘΘΜΜΓΓΡΓΤ�ΨΚςϑ�ΡΤΘΡΘΥΓΦ�ΥςΧΠΦΧΤΦ��ΧΦΛΩΥςΚΠΙ��ΘΤ�ΕΘΤΤΓΕςΚΠΙ�ΛΘΩΤΠΧΝ�ΓΠςΤΚΓΥ�ΘΤ�ΘςϑΓΤ�ΕϑΧΠΙΓΥ
ΧΗΗΓΕςΚΠΙ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�� ΚΠΕΝΩΦΚΠΙ�ΕΧΥϑ�ςΘ�ΧΕΕΤΩΧΝ�ΕΘΠΞΓΤΥΚΘΠΥ��ΟΧΚΠςΧΚΠΚΠΙ�ΦΓΡΤΓΕΚΧςΚΘΠ�ΥΕϑΓΦΩΝΓΥ�ΧΠΦ
ΤΓΕΘΠΕΚΝΚΧςΚΘΠΥ�ΘΗ�ΕΓΤςΧΚΠ�ΚςΓΟΥ���;ΘΩΤ�∆ΘΘΜΜΓΓΡΓΤ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓ�ΩΥ�ΨΚςϑ�Χ�ΦΓςΧΚΝΓΦ�ςΤΚΧΝ�∆ΧΝΧΠΕΓ�ΧΠΦ�ΧΠ[�ΥΩΡΡΘΤςΚΠΙ
ΥΕϑΓΦΩΝΓΥ�ΨΓ�ΤΓΣΩΚΤΓ�

9Γ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΡΓΤΗΘΤΟ�ςϑΓ�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ� ΚΠ�ΧΕΕΘΤΦΧΠΕΓ�ΨΚςϑ�ΧΡΡΝΚΕΧ∆ΝΓ�ΡΤΘΗΓΥΥΚΘΠΧΝ� ΥςΧΠΦΧΤΦΥ�� ΚΠΕΝΩΦΚΠΙ�ςϑΓ�5ςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ΘΠ
5ςΧΠΦΧΤΦΥ�ΗΘΤ�6ΧΖ�5ΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ�ΚΥΥΩΓΦ�∆[�ςϑΓ�#ΟΓΤΚΕΧΠ�+ΠΥςΚςΩςΓ�ΘΗ�%ΓΤςΚΗΚΓΦ�2Ω∆ΝΚΕ�#ΕΕΘΩΠςΧΠςΥ��6ϑΓ�ΘςϑΓΤ�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ�ΧΤΓ
ΝΚΟΚςΓΦ�ςΘ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠς�ΧΠΦ�ςΧΖ�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ�ΡΤΓΞΚΘΩΥΝ[�ΦΓΗΚΠΓΦ��9Γ��ΚΠ�ΘΩΤ�ΥΘΝΓ�ΡΤΘΗΓΥΥΚΘΠΧΝ�ΛΩΦΙΟΓΠς��ΤΓΥΓΤΞΓ
ςϑΓ�ΤΚΙϑς�ςΘ�ΤΓΗΩΥΓ�ςΘ�ΡΓΤΗΘΤΟ�ΧΠ[�ΡΤΘΕΓΦΩΤΓ�ΘΤ� ςΧΜΓ�ΧΠ[�ΧΕςΚΘΠ�ςϑΧς�ΕΘΩΝΦ�∆Γ�ΕΘΠΥςΤΩΓΦ�ΧΥ�ΧΥΥΩΟΚΠΙ�ΟΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς
ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΚΝΚςΚΓΥ��9Γ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΧΦΞΚΥΓ�ΟΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΨΚςϑ�ΤΓΙΧΤΦ�ςΘ�ςΧΖ�ΡΘΥΚςΚΘΠΥ�ςΧΜΓΠ�ΚΠ�ςϑΓ�ΡΤΓΡΧΤΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ�ςϑΓ�ςΧΖ�ΤΓςΩΤΠ�
∆Ως�ΟΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΟΩΥς�ΟΧΜΓ�ΧΝΝ�ΦΓΕΚΥΚΘΠΥ�ΨΚςϑ�ΤΓΙΧΤΦ�ςΘ�ςϑΘΥΓ�ΟΧςςΓΤΥ�

Packet Page Number 36



�

/ΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς�4ΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΚΝΚςΚΓΥ
;ΘΩ�ΧΤΓ�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΝΓ�ΗΘΤ�ΦΓΥΚΙΠΚΠΙ��ΚΟΡΝΓΟΓΠςΚΠΙ��ΧΠΦ�ΟΧΚΠςΧΚΠΚΠΙ�ΚΠςΓΤΠΧΝ�ΕΘΠςΤΘΝΥ�ΤΓΝΓΞΧΠς�ςΘ�ςϑΓ�ΡΤΓΡΧΤΧςΚΘΠ�ΧΠΦ
ΗΧΚΤ �ΡΤΓΥΓΠςΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ �ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ �ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ςϑΧς �ΧΤΓ �ΗΤΓΓ�ΗΤΘΟ�ΟΧςΓΤΚΧΝ �ΟΚΥΥςΧςΓΟΓΠς� �ΨϑΓςϑΓΤ�ΦΩΓ�ςΘ �ΗΤΧΩΦ �ΘΤ �ΓΤΤΘΤ�
ΚΠΕΝΩΦΚΠΙ�ΟΘΠΚςΘΤΚΠΙ� ΘΠΙΘΚΠΙ�ΧΕςΚΞΚςΚΓΥ�� ΗΘΤ� ςϑΓ� ΥΓΝΓΕςΚΘΠ�ΧΠΦ� ΧΡΡΝΚΕΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ� ΧΕΕΘΩΠςΚΠΙ�ΡΤΚΠΕΚΡΝΓΥ�� ΧΠΦ� ΗΘΤ� ςϑΓ
ΡΤΓΡΧΤΧςΚΘΠ�ΧΠΦ�ΗΧΚΤ�ΡΤΓΥΓΠςΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ΚΠ�ΕΘΠΗΘΤΟΚς[�ΨΚςϑ�7�5��ΙΓΠΓΤΧΝΝ[�ΧΕΕΓΡςΓΦ�ΧΕΕΘΩΠςΚΠΙ
ΡΤΚΠΕΚΡΝΓΥ��;ΘΩ�ΧΤΓ�ΧΝΥΘ�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΝΓ�ΗΘΤ�ΟΧΜΚΠΙ�ΧΝΝ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΤΓΕΘΤΦΥ�ΧΠΦ�ΤΓΝΧςΓΦ�ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ�ΧΞΧΚΝΧ∆ΝΓ�ςΘ�ΩΥ�ΧΠΦ�ΗΘΤ
ςϑΓ�ΧΕΕΩΤΧΕ[�ΧΠΦ�ΕΘΟΡΝΓςΓΠΓΥΥ�ΘΗ�ςϑΧς�ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ��;ΘΩ�ΧΤΓ�ΧΝΥΘ�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΝΓ�ΗΘΤ�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΚΠΙ�ΩΥ�ΨΚςϑ�����ΧΕΕΓΥΥ�ςΘ�ΧΝΝ
ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ� ΘΗ� ΨϑΚΕϑ� [ΘΩ� ΧΤΓ� ΧΨΧΤΓ� ςϑΧς� ΚΥ� ΤΓΝΓΞΧΠς� ςΘ� ςϑΓ� ΡΤΓΡΧΤΧςΚΘΠ� ΧΠΦ� ΗΧΚΤ� ΡΤΓΥΓΠςΧςΚΘΠ� ΘΗ� ςϑΓ� ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ
ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�� ΚΠΕΝΩΦΚΠΙ� ΚΦΓΠςΚΗΚΕΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ�ΧΝΝ� ΤΓΝΧςΓΦ�ΡΧΤςΚΓΥ� ΧΠΦ�ΧΝΝ� ΤΓΝΧςΓΦ�ΡΧΤς[� ΤΓΝΧςΚΘΠΥϑΚΡΥ� ΧΠΦ� ςΤΧΠΥΧΕςΚΘΠΥ�� ���
ΧΦΦΚςΚΘΠΧΝ�ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ�ςϑΧς�ΨΓ�ΟΧ[�ΤΓΣΩΓΥς�ΗΘΤ�ςϑΓ�ΡΩΤΡΘΥΓ�ΘΗ�ςϑΓ�ΧΩΦΚς��ΧΠΦ�����ΩΠΤΓΥςΤΚΕςΓΦ�ΧΕΕΓΥΥ�ςΘ�ΡΓΤΥΘΠΥ�ΨΚςϑΚΠ
ςϑΓ�ΘΤΙΧΠΚ∴ΧςΚΘΠ�ΗΤΘΟ�ΨϑΘΟ�ΨΓ�ΦΓςΓΤΟΚΠΓ�Κς�ΠΓΕΓΥΥΧΤ[�ςΘ�Θ∆ςΧΚΠ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΓΞΚΦΓΠΕΓ�

;ΘΩΤ�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΚΝΚςΚΓΥ�ΚΠΕΝΩΦΓ�ΧΦΛΩΥςΚΠΙ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ςΘ�ΕΘΤΤΓΕς�ΟΧςΓΤΚΧΝ�ΟΚΥΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ΧΠΦ�ΕΘΠΗΚΤΟΚΠΙ�ςΘ
ΩΥ�ΚΠ�ςϑΓ�ΟΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΤΓΡΤΓΥΓΠςΧςΚΘΠ�ΝΓςςΓΤ�ςϑΧς�ςϑΓ�ΓΗΗΓΕςΥ�ΘΗ�ΧΠ[�ΩΠΕΘΤΤΓΕςΓΦ�ΟΚΥΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ΧΙΙΤΓΙΧςΓΦ�∆[�ΩΥ�ΦΩΤΚΠΙ
ςϑΓ�ΕΩΤΤΓΠς� ΓΠΙΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΧΠΦ�ΡΓΤςΧΚΠΚΠΙ�ςΘ�ςϑΓ�ΝΧςΓΥς�ΡΓΤΚΘΦ�ΡΤΓΥΓΠςΓΦ�ΧΤΓ�ΚΟΟΧςΓΤΚΧΝ��∆Θςϑ�ΚΠΦΚΞΚΦΩΧΝΝ[�ΧΠΦ�ΚΠ�ςϑΓ
ΧΙΙΤΓΙΧςΓ��ςΘ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�ςΧΜΓΠ�ΧΥ�Χ�ΨϑΘΝΓ�

;ΘΩ�ΧΤΓ�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΝΓ�ΗΘΤ�ςϑΓ�ΦΓΥΚΙΠ�ΧΠΦ�ΚΟΡΝΓΟΓΠςΧςΚΘΠ�ΘΗ�ΡΤΘΙΤΧΟΥ�ΧΠΦ�ΕΘΠςΤΘΝΥ�ςΘ�ΡΤΓΞΓΠς�ΧΠΦ�ΦΓςΓΕς�ΗΤΧΩΦ��ΧΠΦ
ΗΘΤ� ΚΠΗΘΤΟΚΠΙ� ΩΥ� Χ∆ΘΩς� ΧΝΝ� ΜΠΘΨΠ� ΘΤ� ΥΩΥΡΓΕςΓΦ� ΗΤΧΩΦ� ΧΗΗΓΕςΚΠΙ� ςϑΓ� 1ΤΙΧΠΚ∴ΧςΚΘΠ� ΚΠΞΘΝΞΚΠΙ� ���� ΟΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς�
����ΓΟΡΝΘ[ΓΓΥ�ΨϑΘ�ϑΧΞΓ�ΥΚΙΠΚΗΚΕΧΠς�ΤΘΝΓΥ�ΚΠ�ΚΠςΓΤΠΧΝ�ΕΘΠςΤΘΝ��ΧΠΦ�����ΘςϑΓΤΥ�ΨϑΓΤΓ�ςϑΓ�ΗΤΧΩΦ�ΕΘΩΝΦ�ϑΧΞΓ�Χ�ΟΧςΓΤΚΧΝ
ΓΗΗΓΕς�ΘΠ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ��;ΘΩΤ�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΚΝΚςΚΓΥ�ΚΠΕΝΩΦΓ�ΚΠΗΘΤΟΚΠΙ�ΩΥ�ΘΗ�[ΘΩΤ�ΜΠΘΨΝΓΦΙΓ�ΘΗ�ΧΠ[�ΧΝΝΓΙΧςΚΘΠΥ
ΘΗ� ΗΤΧΩΦ� ΘΤ� ΥΩΥΡΓΕςΓΦ� ΗΤΧΩΦ� ΧΗΗΓΕςΚΠΙ� ςϑΓ� 1ΤΙΧΠΚ∴ΧςΚΘΠ� ΤΓΕΓΚΞΓΦ� ΚΠ� ΕΘΟΟΩΠΚΕΧςΚΘΠΥ� ΗΤΘΟ� ΓΟΡΝΘ[ΓΓΥ�� ΗΘΤΟΓΤ
ΓΟΡΝΘ[ΓΓΥ�� ΙΤΧΠςΘΤΥ�� ΤΓΙΩΝΧςΘΤΥ�� ΘΤ� ΘςϑΓΤΥ�� +Π� ΧΦΦΚςΚΘΠ�� [ΘΩ� ΧΤΓ� ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΝΓ� ΗΘΤ� ΚΦΓΠςΚΗ[ΚΠΙ� ΧΠΦ� ΓΠΥΩΤΚΠΙ� ςϑΓ
1ΤΙΧΠΚ∴ΧςΚΘΠ�ΕΘΟΡΝΚΓΥ�ΨΚςϑ�ΧΡΡΝΚΕΧ∆ΝΓ�ΝΧΨΥ�ΧΠΦ�ΤΓΙΩΝΧςΚΘΠΥ�

;ΘΩ� ΧΤΓ� ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΝΓ� ΗΘΤ� ςϑΓ� ΡΤΓΡΧΤΧςΚΘΠ� ΘΗ� ςϑΓ� ΥΩΡΡΝΓΟΓΠςΧΤ[� ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ� ΚΠ� ΕΘΠΗΘΤΟΚς[� ΨΚςϑ� 7�5�� ΙΓΠΓΤΧΝΝ[
ΧΕΕΓΡςΓΦ�ΧΕΕΘΩΠςΚΠΙ�ΡΤΚΠΕΚΡΝΓΥ��;ΘΩ�ΧΙΤΓΓ�ςΘ�ΚΠΕΝΩΦΓ�ΘΩΤ�ΤΓΡΘΤς�ΘΠ�ςϑΓ�ΥΩΡΡΝΓΟΓΠςΧΤ[�ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ�ΚΠ�ΧΠ[�ΦΘΕΩΟΓΠς
ςϑΧς�ΕΘΠςΧΚΠΥ��ΧΠΦ�ΚΠΦΚΕΧςΓΥ�ςϑΧς�ΨΓ�ϑΧΞΓ�ΤΓΡΘΤςΓΦ�ΘΠ��ςϑΓ�ΥΩΡΡΝΓΟΓΠςΧΤ[�ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ��;ΘΩ�ΧΝΥΘ�ΧΙΤΓΓ�ςΘ�ΚΠΕΝΩΦΓ�ςϑΓ
ΧΩΦΚςΓΦ� ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ� ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ� ΨΚςϑ� ΧΠ[� ΡΤΓΥΓΠςΧςΚΘΠ� ΘΗ� ςϑΓ� ΥΩΡΡΝΓΟΓΠςΧΤ[� ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ� ςϑΧς� ΚΠΕΝΩΦΓΥ� ΘΩΤ� ΤΓΡΘΤς
ςϑΓΤΓΘΠ�

;ΘΩ�ΧΙΤΓΓ�ςΘ�ΧΥΥΩΟΓ�ΧΝΝ�ΟΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΚΝΚςΚΓΥ�ΗΘΤ�ςϑΓ�ςΧΖ�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ��ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠς�ΡΤΓΡΧΤΧςΚΘΠ�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ�
ΧΠΦ�ΧΠ[�ΘςϑΓΤ�ΠΘΠΧςςΓΥς�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ�ΨΓ�ΡΤΘΞΚΦΓ��ΘΞΓΤΥΓΓ�ςϑΓ�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ�∆[�ΦΓΥΚΙΠΧςΚΠΙ�ΧΠ�ΚΠΦΚΞΚΦΩΧΝ�� ΡΤΓΗΓΤΧ∆Ν[�ΗΤΘΟ
ΥΓΠΚΘΤ�ΟΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς��ΨΚςϑ�ΥΩΚςΧ∆ΝΓ�ΥΜΚΝΝ��ΜΠΘΨΝΓΦΙΓ��ΘΤ�ΓΖΡΓΤΚΓΠΕΓ��ΓΞΧΝΩΧςΓ�ςϑΓ�ΧΦΓΣΩΧΕ[�ΧΠΦ�ΤΓΥΩΝςΥ�ΘΗ�ςϑΓ�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ�
ΧΠΦ�ΧΕΕΓΡς�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΚΝΚς[�ΗΘΤ�ςϑΓΟ�

∋ΠΙΧΙΓΟΓΠς�#ΦΟΚΠΚΥςΤΧςΚΘΠ��(ΓΓΥ��ΧΠΦ�1ςϑΓΤ

9Γ�ΩΠΦΓΤΥςΧΠΦ�ςϑΧς�[ΘΩΤ�ΓΟΡΝΘ[ΓΓΥ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΡΤΓΡΧΤΓ�ΧΝΝ�ΕΧΥϑ��ΧΕΕΘΩΠςΥ�ΤΓΕΓΚΞΧ∆ΝΓ��ΧΠΦ�ΘςϑΓΤ�ΕΘΠΗΚΤΟΧςΚΘΠΥ�ΨΓ�ΤΓΣΩΓΥς
ΧΠΦ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΝΘΕΧςΓ�ΧΠ[�ΦΘΕΩΟΓΠςΥ�ΥΓΝΓΕςΓΦ�∆[�ΩΥ�ΗΘΤ�ςΓΥςΚΠΙ�

−ΧΤΓΠ�/��%ΧΤΓΨ��%2#�ΚΥ�ςϑΓ�ΓΠΙΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΡΧΤςΠΓΤ�ΧΠΦ�ΚΥ�ΤΓΥΡΘΠΥΚ∆ΝΓ�ΗΘΤ�ΥΩΡΓΤΞΚΥΚΠΙ�ςϑΓ�ΓΠΙΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΧΠΦ�ΥΚΙΠΚΠΙ�ςϑΓ
ΤΓΡΘΤς�ΘΤ�ΧΩςϑΘΤΚ∴ΚΠΙ�ΧΠΘςϑΓΤ�ΚΠΦΚΞΚΦΩΧΝ�ςΘ�ΥΚΙΠ�Κς��9Γ�ΓΖΡΓΕς�ςΘ�∆ΓΙΚΠ�ΘΩΤ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΘΠ�ΧΡΡΤΘΖΚΟΧςΓΝ[�,ΩΝ[����������
ΧΠΦ�ςΘ�ΕΘΟΡΝΓςΓ�[ΘΩΤ�ΚΠΗΘΤΟΧςΚΘΠ�ΤΓςΩΤΠΥ�ΧΠΦ�ΚΥΥΩΓ�ΘΩΤ�ΤΓΡΘΤς�ΠΘ�ΝΧςΓΤ�ςϑΧΠ�#ΩΙΩΥς����������

1ΩΤ�ΗΓΓΥ�ΗΘΤ�ςϑΓ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΧΠΦ�ΘςϑΓΤ�ΠΘΠΧςςΓΥς�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ�ΨΚΝΝ�∆Γ�������� 6ϑΓ�ΧΩΦΚς�ΚΥ�ΡΧ[Χ∆ΝΓ�ΚΠ�ςϑΤΓΓ�ΚΠΥςΧΝΝΟΓΠςΥ��������
ΦΩΓ�ΩΡΘΠ�ΥΚΙΠΚΠΙ�ΘΗ�ςϑΚΥ�ΓΠΙΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΝΓςςΓΤ���������ΦΩΓ�Χς�ςϑΓ�ΥςΧΤς�ΘΗ�ΗΚΓΝΦ�ΨΘΤΜ��ΧΠΦ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΝ�ΡΧ[ΟΓΠς�ΘΗ�������
ΨΚΝΝ�∆Γ�ΦΩΓ�ΨΚςϑ�ΦΓΝΚΞΓΤ[�ΘΗ�ςϑΓ�ΦΤΧΗς�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ�

Packet Page Number 37



�

6ϑΚΥ�ΗΓΓ�ΚΠΕΝΩΦΓΥ�ΗΚΞΓ�∆ΘΩΠΦ�ΕΘΡΚΓΥ�ΘΗ�ςϑΓ�ΗΚΠΧΠΕΚΧΝ�ΥςΧςΓΟΓΠςΥ��#ΦΦΚςΚΘΠΧΝ�ΕΘΡΚΓΥ�ΧΤΓ�����ΡΓΤ�ΕΘΡ[��;ΘΩ�ΟΧ[�ΧΝΥΘ
∆Γ�∆ΚΝΝΓΦ� ΗΘΤ� ςΤΧΞΓΝ� ΧΠΦ� ΘςϑΓΤ� ΘΩς�ΘΗ�ΡΘΕΜΓς� ΕΘΥςΥ� ΥΩΕϑ�ΧΥ� ΤΓΡΘΤς� ΡΤΘΦΩΕςΚΘΠ��ΨΘΤΦ�ΡΤΘΕΓΥΥΚΠΙ�� ΡΘΥςΧΙΓ�� ΓςΕ�� 0Θ
ΧΦΦΚςΚΘΠΧΝ� ΓΖΡΓΠΥΓΥ� ΧΤΓ� ΓΖΡΓΕςΓΦ� Χς� ςϑΚΥ� ςΚΟΓ�� 6ϑΓ� ΗΓΓ� ΓΥςΚΟΧςΓ� ΚΥ� ∆ΧΥΓΦ� ΘΠ� ΧΠςΚΕΚΡΧςΓΦ� ΕΘΘΡΓΤΧςΚΘΠ� ΗΤΘΟ� [ΘΩΤ
ΡΓΤΥΘΠΠΓΝ�ΧΠΦ�ςϑΓ�ΧΥΥΩΟΡςΚΘΠ�ςϑΧς�ΩΠΓΖΡΓΕςΓΦ�ΕΚΤΕΩΟΥςΧΠΕΓΥ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΠΘς�∆Γ�ΓΠΕΘΩΠςΓΤΓΦ�ΦΩΤΚΠΙ�ςϑΓ�ΓΠΙΧΙΓΟΓΠς�� +Η
ΥΚΙΠΚΗΚΕΧΠς�ΧΦΦΚςΚΘΠΧΝ�ςΚΟΓ�ΚΥ�ΠΓΕΓΥΥΧΤ[��ΨΓ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΦΚΥΕΩΥΥ�Κς�ΨΚςϑ�[ΘΩ�ΧΠΦ�ΘΩΤ�ΗΓΓΥ�ΨΚΝΝ�∆Γ�ΧΦΛΩΥςΓΦ�ΧΕΕΘΤΦΚΠΙΝ[�

+Π�ΧΕΕΘΤΦΧΠΕΓ�ΨΚςϑ�ΘΩΤ�ΗΚΤΟ�ΡΘΝΚΕΚΓΥ��ΨΘΤΜ�ΟΧ[�∆Γ�ΥΩΥΡΓΠΦΓΦ�ΚΗ�[ΘΩΤ�ΧΕΕΘΩΠς�∆ΓΕΘΟΓΥ����ΦΧ[Υ�ΘΤ�ΟΘΤΓ�ΘΞΓΤΦΩΓ
ΧΠΦ�ΨΚΝΝ�ΠΘς�∆Γ�ΤΓΥΩΟΓΦ�ΩΠςΚΝ�[ΘΩΤ�ΧΕΕΘΩΠς�ΚΥ�ΡΧΚΦ�ΚΠ�ΗΩΝΝ��+Η�ΨΓ�ΓΝΓΕς�ςΘ�ςΓΤΟΚΠΧςΓ�ΘΩΤ�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓΥ�ΗΘΤ�ΠΘΠΡΧ[ΟΓΠς��ΘΩΤ
ΓΠΙΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΨΚΝΝ�∆Γ�ΦΓΓΟΓΦ�ςΘ�ϑΧΞΓ�∆ΓΓΠ�ΕΘΟΡΝΓςΓΦ�ΓΞΓΠ�ΚΗ�ΨΓ�ϑΧΞΓ�ΠΘς�ΚΥΥΩΓΦ�ΘΩΤ�ΤΓΡΘΤς��;ΘΩ�ΨΚΝΝ�∆Γ�Θ∆ΝΚΙΧςΓΦ
ςΘ�ΕΘΟΡΓΠΥΧςΓ�ΩΥ�ΗΘΤ�ΧΝΝ�ςΚΟΓ�ΓΖΡΓΠΦΓΦ�ΧΠΦ�ςΘ�ΤΓΚΟ∆ΩΤΥΓ�ΩΥ�ΗΘΤ�ΧΝΝ�ΘΩς�ΘΗ�ΡΘΕΜΓς�ΓΖΡΓΠΦΚςΩΤΓΥ�ςϑΤΘΩΙϑ�ςϑΓ�ΦΧςΓ�ΘΗ
ςΓΤΟΚΠΧςΚΘΠ�

9Γ�ΧΡΡΤΓΕΚΧςΓ�ςϑΓ�ΘΡΡΘΤςΩΠΚς[�ςΘ�∆Γ�ΘΗ�ΥΓΤΞΚΕΓ�ςΘ�[ΘΩ�ΧΠΦ�∆ΓΝΚΓΞΓ�ςϑΚΥ�ΝΓςςΓΤ�ΧΕΕΩΤΧςΓΝ[�ΥΩΟΟΧΤΚ∴ΓΥ�ςϑΓ�ΥΚΙΠΚΗΚΕΧΠς
ςΓΤΟΥ� ΘΗ� ΘΩΤ� ΓΠΙΧΙΓΟΓΠς�� +Η� [ΘΩ� ϑΧΞΓ� ΧΠ[� ΣΩΓΥςΚΘΠΥ�� ΡΝΓΧΥΓ� ΝΓς� ΩΥ� ΜΠΘΨ�� +Η� [ΘΩ� ΧΙΤΓΓ� ΨΚςϑ� ςϑΓ� ςΓΤΟΥ� ΘΗ� ΘΩΤ
ΓΠΙΧΙΓΟΓΠς�ΧΥ�ΦΓΥΕΤΚ∆ΓΦ�ΚΠ�ςϑΚΥ�ΝΓςςΓΤ��ΡΝΓΧΥΓ�ΥΚΙΠ�ςϑΓ�ΓΠΕΝΘΥΓΦ�ΕΘΡ[�ΧΠΦ�ΤΓςΩΤΠ�Κς�ςΘ�ΩΥ�

8ΓΤ[�ςΤΩΝ[�[ΘΩΤΥ�

%ΧΤΓΨ�	�9ΓΝΝΥ��2..%
%ΧΤΓΨ�	�9ΓΝΝΥ��2..%

4∋52105∋�

6ϑΚΥ�ΝΓςςΓΤ�ΕΘΤΤΓΕςΝ[�ΥΓςΥ�ΗΘΤςϑ�ςϑΓ�ΩΠΦΓΤΥςΧΠΦΚΠΙ�ΘΗ�0ΓΨ�∗ΧΟΡΥϑΚΤΓ�8ΧΕΕΚΠΓ�#ΥΥΘΕΚΧςΚΘΠ

/ΧΠΧΙΓΟΓΠς�5ΚΙΠΧςΩΤΓ�

&ΧςΓ�

)ΘΞΓΤΠΧΠΕΓ�5ΚΙΠΧςΩΤΓ�

&ΧςΓ�

Packet Page Number 38



5/15/20
10:55 AM

 NHVA
FY 21 Expense Budget
 July 2020 through June 2021

DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION May 28, 2020

 Page 1 of 1

Jul 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21

FY2021 
Budget 

Total

FY 2020 
Budget 
Total

FY2020/21 
Difference

EXPENSE
Administrative Fees 8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    105,000$ 100,000$ (5,000)$     
Subcontractors -$          1,200$      1,200$      

Subtotal 8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    8,750$    105,000$ 101,200$ (3,800)$     
Bank Fees 360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       4,320$      2,000$      (2,320)$     
Board Meeting Expense -$        -$        215$       120$       120$       -$        120$       -$        120$       95$         -$        120$       910$         600$         (310)$        
Stationary and Printing 35$         35$         35$         35$         35$         35$         35$         35$         35$         35$         35$         35$         420$         -$          (420)$        
Dues and Subscriptions -$          -$          -$          

** Insurance (D&O) 4,000$    4,000$      2,000$      (2,000)$     
Licenses and Fees 75$         75$            75$            -$          
Postage and Shipping 10$         10$         10$         10$         10$         10$         10$         10$         10$         10$         10$         10$         120$         480$         360$         
Professional Fees - Audit 8,500$    8,500$      8,500$      -$          
Professional Fees - Legal 2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    25,000$    25,000$    -$          
Public Information Expense -$          -$          -$          
Website 525$       525$         525$         -$          

Subtotal 10,988$ 2,488$    3,228$    2,683$    2,608$    2,488$    6,608$    2,488$    2,608$    2,583$    2,488$    2,608$    43,870$    41,500$    (2,370)$     
TOTAL EXPENSE 19,738$ 11,238$ 11,978$ 11,433$ 11,358$ 11,238$ 15,358$ 11,238$ 11,358$ 11,333$ 11,238$ 11,358$ 148,870$ 142,700$ (6,170)$     

Budget Notes: Reference: Former Approved Budgets by FY
Administrative Fees - Helms contract = $100K in Years 1 & 2 with inflater in Year 3 to $105K FY2017 162,072$ 
Subcontractors - In prior years it was a placeholder for any IT system changes (e.g., TRICARE in 2019); none budgeted for FY2021 FY2018 167,600$ 
Bank Fees - Lockbox was eliminated 01/2020 to reduce expenses and Helms brought it in house FY2019 320,133$ 
Board Meeting Expense - materials printing; refeshments FY2020 142,700$ 
Stationary and Printing
** Insurance (D&O) - Highly variable expense: FY2020 budgeted $2,000 but actual was $3,360 due to increased assets; prior year expense was $8,000
Licenses and Fees - SOS NH Annual Report filing fee
Postage and Shipping - check tracking for dual signatures
Audit - same as FY2020 (as of 05.15.2020 waiting on confirmation from Carew & Wells)
Legal - same as FY2020
Website - annual hosting fees (last year was $486)

Packet Page Number 39


	1.0_2020-06-05 AGENDA - NHVA Audit Committee
	2.0_2019-09-16 MINUTES - DRAFT NHVA Audit Committee V.2 - POSTED
	3.0_200430 NHVA FInancials
	3.1_2020-06-05 NHVA Covered Lives Analysis
	COVID-19 Assessed Lives Impact Discussion
	Contents
	1. Background
	Background
	NH Unemployment Rate April 2000 to April 2020
	Some Good News From Department of Employment Security
	Multiple Predictions of Commercial Losses
	NH Medicaid Enrollment Changes
	NH Childhood Immunization Program Actions and Insights
	2. Historical Trends
	Increasing State Vaccine Expenditures and Stability in Payer Proportion
	Shrinking Assessed Lives and Variability in Assessed Rate
	Trends Pre-COVID-19
	3. Model
	Model Assumptions
	Model: Pre- and Post-COVID-19 Expectations
	4. Discussion & Next Steps
	Discussion Questions & Next Steps
	Reference Materials
	Cash Flow / Reconciliation / Rates
	Slide Number 21
	DHHS Tab D�08-21-2019
	DHHS Tab D Edits - 09-17-2019
	Slide Number 24
	Contact

	4.0_2020-05-19 Carew and Wells Engagement Letter_unsigned
	5.0_2020-21 NHVA ADMIN BUDGET_2020-05-28 Audit Cmte DRAFTv2



